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NOTICE 

OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Notice is hereby given that the 22ndAnnual General Meeting of the Members of the company will be held at its 
registered office situated at F-69-A, RIICO Industrial Area, Sikar, Rajasthan-332001on Monday, the 17th day of 
June, 2024, at 1.00 P.M. to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2024, the Statement of 

Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date, together with the 
Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajendra Kaler (DIN-08032024), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SHARWAN KUMAR KALER AS THE MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE 

COMPANY 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a 
Special resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152, 196,197, 198 and 203 read with schedule V 
and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),and Rules made 
there under (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force) and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors, consent of the members be and is herby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Sharwan 
Kumar Kaler (DIN:01050715) as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f 01-05-
2024 till 30-04-2029 on terms and conditions and payment of monthly remuneration payable to him 
during the period of his continuance in the office of Managing Director of the Company as detailed 
hereunder: 

 
 

S.No. Particulars  
1. Basic Salary Rs. 24,00,000 per annum 
2. Medical Reimbursement 

Expenses 
Upto Rs. 10 Lacs per annum 

3. Other Allowances Other allowances including payments in the nature of 
medical reimbursements, club fee etc. upto the amount 
specified in the rules of the company. 

4. Perquisites 1. Chauffer Driven car for the business purposes of the 
Company & Personal use 

2. Company’s Contribution towards Superannuation and 
Provident Fund as per rules of the company 

3. Earned/Privilege Leaves – As per rules of the 
company. Leaves accumulated but not availed during 
the tenure may be allowed to be encashed at the end 
of the tenure. 

4. Mobile phone for official and personal use. 
5. Other benefits 1. Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually 

and properly incurred in course of the business of the 
company  

2. The Expenses in connection with the spouse 
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accompanying the Managing Director while on the 
business tours in India and abroad to be borne by the 
company 

3. Such other benefits amenities and other privileges as 
may from time to time be available to other 
executives of the company and the monetary value 
shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, Wherever 
applicable and in the absence of any such rule, the 
same be evaluated at actual cost. 

6.  4.  
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the above mentioned remuneration may be increased upto 20% annually 
with the approval of Board of Directors.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the 
remuneration as set above be paid to Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler as minimum remuneration, subject to 
necessary approvals(s) as may be required. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THATany of the Director(s)of the company be and is hereby authorised to do all 
such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, agreements, instruments and writings as 
may be usual, expedient or proper to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required to seek any 
further consent or approval of the Members of the Company, otherwise to the end and intent that 
they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 
resolution.” 

 
4. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAJENDRA KUMAR KALER AS THE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE 

COMPANY: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a 
special resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 152, 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with 
schedule V and rule 7 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies Act, 2013, or any 
statutory modification (s) or re-enactment thereof, approval of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Rajendra Kaler (DIN-08032024), as Whole Time Director of the 
Company for a period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f. 01-05-2024 till 30-04-2029 on terms and conditions and 
payment of monthly remuneration payable to him during the period of his continuance in the office 
of Managing Director of the Company as detailed hereunder: 
 

S.No. Particulars  
1. Basic Salary Rs. 16,20,000/- per annum 
2. Medical Reimbursement 

Expenses 
Upto Rs. 5 Lacs per annum 

3. Other Allowances Other allowances including payments in the nature of 
medical reimbursements, club fee etc. upto the amount 
specified in the rules of the company. 

4. Perquisites 1. Chauffer Driven car for the business purposes of the 
Company & Personal use 

2. Company’s Contribution towards Superannuation and 
Provident Fund as per rules of the company 

3. Earned/Privilege Leaves – As per rules of the 
company. Leaves accumulated but not availed during 
the tenure may be allowed to be encased at the end 
of the tenure. 

4. Mobile phone for official and personal use. 
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5. Other benefits 1. Reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually 
and properly incurred in course of the business of the 
company  

2. The Expenses in connection with the spouse 
accompanying the Managing Director while on the 
business tours in India and abroad to be borne by the 
company 

3. Such other benefits amenities and other privileges as 
may from time to time be available to other 
executives of the company and the monetary value 
shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, Wherever 
applicable and in the absence of any such rule, the 
same be evaluated at actual cost. 

 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the above mentioned remuneration may be increased upto 20% annually 
with the approval of Board of Directors.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are 
inadequate, the Company will pay to Mr. Rajendra Kaler, the remuneration as specified above by way 
of salary, Commission and perquisites, as minimum remuneration.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all other terms of appointment of Mr. Rajendra Kaleras Whole Time 
Director will remain unchanged.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THATany of the Director(s) of the company  be and are hereby authorised to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
5. TO INCREASE THE MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION OF MRS. SOHANI DEVI, WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 

OF THE COMPANY: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a 
special resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 197 and 198 read with schedule V and 
rule 7 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modification 
(s) or re-enactment thereof, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the increase in 
remuneration payable to Mrs. Sohani Devi (DIN-02839191), Whole Time Director, and accordingly, his 
remuneration be and is hereby revised to Rs. 50,000/- per month w.e.f. 01.04.2024.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are 
inadequate, the Company will pay to Mrs. Sohani Devi, the remuneration as specified above along 
with any increment as may be made by board of directors from time to time by way of salary and 
perquisites, as minimum remuneration.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all other terms of appointment of Mrs. Sohani Devi as whole time 
director, will remain unchanged except increase in remuneration as approved here – in - above.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and are hereby authorised to take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
6. APPOINTMENT OF MR. NIMIT JAIN (DIN:10635673) AS NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a 
special resolution: 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 any other applicable 
provisions (including any modification or re-enactment thereof), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the rules made thereunder, read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and on 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company and the Board of 
Directors, the consent of the Shareholders of the Company is be and hereby accorded to appoint Mr. 
Nimit Jain (DIN: 10635673), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for 
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act, as Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company for a for 5 (Five) consecutive years with effect from 20-05-2024, to 30-04-2029, and 
whose office is not liable to retire by rotation. The terms and conditions for such appointment shall be 
as mentioned in the appointment letter. The Board may amend such terms and conditions upon 
agreement between the director and the Board.” 
 
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Nimit Jain (DIN: 10635673) shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for 
attending meetings of the Board of Directors and of Committee thereof.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director(s) of the Company be and is hereby authorized to file Form 
DIR-12 with the Registrar of Companies within the prescribed period along with the prescribed fees, 
to do the necessary entries in the Register of Director and Key Managerial Personnel and to do all 
such acts, deeds and things to give effect to this resolution including signing, executing, submitting 
any application(s), document(s), letter(s) etc.” 

 
7. TO APPROVE THE  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a 
special resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements),2015 and Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under 
(including any amendment, modification or re-enactment thereof), as amended from time to time 
and subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may be 
necessary, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any committees 
thereof) to enter into contracts/arrangement/transactions with any of related party(ies) of the 
Company (entered/to be entered individually with a related party or entered/to be entered with all 
the related parties taken together with) on the terms as mentioned in the explanatory statement 
hereto.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
finalise and approve the necessary contracts / arrangements / transactions with related parties and to 
do all the acts, deeds and things as may be necessary for purpose.” 

 
 

 
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

DATE: 20.05.2024 
PLACE:SIKAR        

Sd/- 
(MONIKA BOHARA) 

    COMPANY SECRETARY 
M.NO.60048 
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Notes: 
 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (HEREIN AFTER 

REFERRED TO AS ‘THE MEETING’) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A BLANK FORM OF 
PROXY IS ENCLOSED WHICH, IF USED, SHOULD BE RETURNED TO THE COMPANY DULY FILLED UP NOT 
LATER THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING DULY STAMPED 
AND SIGNED. 
 
A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE 
AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 
CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY AND CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY 
AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. PROXY 
FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP IS ENCLOSED HEREWITH. 

2. THE CUT OFF DATE FOR EVOTING IS FRIDAY, 07TH JUNE, 2024. 
3. A ROUTE MAP GIVING DIRECTIONS TO REACH THE VENUE OF THE 22NDANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS 

ENCLOSED FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE MEMBERS. 
4. THE NOTICE OF 22ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND THE ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 OF THE COMPANY, 

CIRCULATED TO THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY, WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE ON THE COMPANY'S 
WEBSITE AT WWW.RPCIL.COM. 

5. SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM ARE REQUESTED TO REGISTER THEIR EMAIL 
ADDRESS WITH THE REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS BY SENDING DULY SIGNED REQUEST 
LETTER QUOATING THEIR FOLIO NO.,NAME AND ADDRESS, IN CASE OF SHARES DEED IN DEMATE FORM, 
THE SHAREHOLDERS MAY REGISTER THEIR EMAIL WITH THEIR DP’S (DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS). 

6. MEMBERS ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE REQUESTED TO BRING WITH THEM THE 
FOLLOWING: 
(A) DP & CLIENT ID NUMBERS OR FOLIO NUMBERS ALONG WITH PROOF OF IDENTITY AND ADDRESS. 
(B) ATTENDANCE SLIP AND (C) COPY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND NOTICE, AS NO COPIES THEREOF 
WOULD BE DISTRIBUTED AT THE MEETING. 

7. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN SINGLE NAME AND PHYSICAL FORM ARE ADVISED TO MAKE NOMINATION 
IN RESPECT OF THEIR SHAREHOLDING IN THE COMPANY. 

8. COPIES OF ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023-24 ARE BEING SENT TO ALL THE MEMBERS WHOSE EMAIL IDS ARE 
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS FOR COMMUNICATION PURPOSES UNLESS ANY 
MEMBER HAS REQUESTED FOR A HARD COPY OF THE SAME. FOR MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT REGISTERED 
THEIR EMAIL ADDRESS, PHYSICAL COPIES OF THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023-24 IS BEING SENT IN THE 
PERMITTED MODE. 

9. ALL THE DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE SHALL BE OPEN FOR INSPECTION BY 
THE MEMBERS AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY ON ALL WORKING DAYS BETWEEN 10:00 
A.M. TO 5:00 P.M. 

10. CS JAI PRAKASH SHARMA, FCS 5664 PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY AND PARTNER OF M/S JPS & 
ASSOCIATES, COMPANY SECRETARIES, JAIPUR HASBEEN APPOINTED AS A SCRUTINIZER TO SCRUTINIZE 
THE REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM TO BE CARRIED OUT IN A FAIR AND TRANSPARENT 
MANNER AND THEY HAVE COMMUNICATED THEIR WILLINGNESS TO BE APPOINTED AND WILL BE 
AVAILABLE FOR THE SAID PURPOSE. 
 

11. PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING AND OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 2 ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF 
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA ,FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS  FURNISHED ABOUT DIRECTORS  WHO 
ARE PROPSED TO BE  APOOINTED/RE-APPOINTED AT THE  ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
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NAME OF DIRECTOR MR. SHARWAN KUMAR KALER 
AGE 54 YEARS 
DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT ON BOARD 09-07-2002 
DESIGNATION MANAGING DIRECTOR 
QUALIFICATION(S) BSC. (GRADUATE) 
EXPERIENCE 22 YEARS EXPERIENCE IN THE FIELD OF PVC 

PIPES, HDPE PIPES, PLASTIC MANUFACTURING 
INDUSTRIES. 
 

BRIEF RESUME  AND EXPERTISE  IN SPECIAL 
FUNCTIONAL AREA 

MR. SHARWAN KUMAR KALER IS MANAGING 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY AND BACHELOR OF 
SCIENCE. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTOR, 
MANAGER AND KMPS 

HE IS HUSBAND OF MRS. SOHANI DEVI 
(WHOLETIME DIRECTOR)FATHER OF MR. 
RAJENDRA KALER (WHOLETIME DIRECTOR) AND  
MR. JITENDRA KUMAR KALER (NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR) 

NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTEND DURING THE 
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR 

5 

 
 

NAME OF DIRECTOR MR. RAJENDRA KALER 
AGE 30 
DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT ON BOARD 13-01-2018 
DESIGNATION WHOLETIME DIRECTOR 
QUALIFICATION(S) MBA FROM (UK), B.TECH  
EXPERIENCE          EXPERIENCE IN THE FIELD OF PVC PIPES, HDPE 

PIPES, PLASTIC      MANUFACTUR  INDUSTRIES. 

BRIEF RESUME  AND EXPERTISE  IN SPECIAL 
FUNCTIONAL AREA 

MR. RAJENDRA KALER IS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
OF THE COMPANY AND BACHELOR OF 
TECHNOLOGY FROM RAJASTHAN TECHNICAL 
UNIVERSITY KOTA, TAILOR MADE COURSE IN 
MECHENICAL DRAFTING USING AUTOCAD AND 
MASTERS OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FROM 
U.K. HE IS HAVING MORE THAN 3 YEARS 
EXPERIENCE IN THE FIELD OF PLASTIC INDUSTRY, 
AND TEAM MANAGEMENT. HE HAS BEEN ON THE 
BOARD OF COMPANY SINCE JANUARY, 2018 

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTOR, 
MANAGER AND KMPS 

HE IS SON OF MR. SHARWAN KUMAR KALER 
(MANAGING DIRECTOR) AND MRS. SOHANI DEVI 
(WHOLETIME DIRECTOR). BROTHER OF MR. 
JITENDRA KUMAR KALER (NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR) 

NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTEND DURING THE 
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR 

6 

 
 

NAME OF DIRECTOR MR. NIMIT JAIN 
DIN 10635673 
DATE OF BIRTH 17-12-1989 
AGE 35 YEARS 
DESIGNATION INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR  
QUALIFICATION(S) B. TECH. (COMPUTER SCIENCE AND 

ENGINEERING) 
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EXPERIENCE 11 YEARS EXPERIENCE IN THE FIELD OF MARBLES, 
TITLES AND SANITARY. 
 

DEATILS OF REMUNERATION LAST DRAWN NA 
DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT IN THE CURRENT 
DESIGNATION 

20-05-2024 

SHAREHOLDING IN THE COMPANY NIL 
BRIEF RESUME  AND EXPERTISE  IN SPECIAL 
FUNCTIONAL AREA 

MR. NIMIT JAIN HANDLING HIS FAMILY BUSINESS 
SINCE 2014. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER DIRECTOR, 
MANAGER AND KMPS 

NOT RELATIVE 

NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS ATTEND DURING THE 
PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR 

NA 

 
 
12. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTINGARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, June 14, 2024 at 10:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, June 16, 2024 
at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, 
whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 
07.06.2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 07.06.2024. 

 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’section,this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e.NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period Ifyou are not 
registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
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Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e.NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.comand click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link 
available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 
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Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33 

 
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e.Demat(NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 
ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 
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b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronicallyon NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronicallyon NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycleis in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
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6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 
tojpsassociates@hotmail.comwith a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders 
(i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney 
/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed 
under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 
call on: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email tocs@rexpumps.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
tocs@rexpumps.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you 
are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id 
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 
update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-
Voting facility. 

 
The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the 
special Business is annexed hereto.  
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
ITEM NO. 3:   
 
The term of appointment of Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler as Managing Director of the Company has came to an 
end on 30.04.2024. The present proposal is to seek the member’s approval for the re-appointment of Mr. 
Sharwan Kumar Kaler as Managing Director with effect from 1stMay, 2024. The term of re-appointment of and 
remuneration payable to Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler as Managing Director has been set in the resolution itself. 
 
The Terms and Conditions set out for the re- appointment and payments of remuneration herein may be 
altered and varied from time to time by the Board. 
 
Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler satisfies all the eligibility conditions set out in Schedule V annexed to the Companies 
Act, 2013 for the re- appointment as Managing Director of the company and has offered himself for re- 
appointment. The company has made tremendous progress under leadership of Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler, 
hence your Directors recommend the resolution set out at item no. 3 of the Notice for your approval. 
 
The following additional detailed information as per Section – II of Schedule V is as follows:  
 
I. General Information: 
 

a. Nature of industry:- Manufacturing. 
b. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:-Commercial production 

commenced on 9th July, 2002. 
c. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by 

financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not applicable. 
d. Financial performance based on given indicators: 

Financial year 2023-24 Gross Revenue: Rs.12,899.22Lacs 
Profit after Tax: Rs.473.17Lacs 
Earnings per Share: Rs.5.02/- 

e. Foreign investments or collaborators, if any:- N. A.  
 

II. Information about the appointee:  
f. Background details:-Mr.SharwanKumar Kaler S/o Shri Ratna Ram Kaler having qualification BSC. 

Graduate from Rajasthan University and is on the Board of the company since incorporation and was 
appointed as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.05.2019. 

g. Past remuneration: -The remuneration drawn by Mr.Sharwan Kumar Kaler during FY 2023-24 is Rs. 
1.68 Lacs. 

h. Recognition or awards:- N. A. 
i. Job profile and his suitability:-Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler is a Managing Director of the Company. He is 

handling Strategic and corporate management functions of the Company.   
j. Remuneration Proposed:- Rs. 1,35,000/- per month. 
k. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the 

position and person:- Taking into account his capabilities and experience and the responsibilities 
shouldered by him, the aforesaid remuneration is commensurate with the remuneration package paid 
to similar appointees in other companies in general 

l. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:-None except managerial remuneration. 

 
III. Other information:  
 

m. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:- The Company is a profit making company. Only for the 
purpose of payment of Managerial Remuneration, the Company had inadequate profits, which was 
due to reasons beyond its control.  
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n. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:- Continued efforts on technology up-
gradation will result into overall improvement in the coming years. 

o. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:-Not ascertainable. 
 
Appointment / re-appointment of Managing Director attracts provisions of section 197 and 198 read with 
schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, according to which it should be authorised by the members in the 
general meeting by passing a special resolution in this respect. Hence, this resolution is placed for 
consideration of members and if thought fit to be passed as a special resolution, with or without modification. 
 
Mr. Rajendra Kaler, Mrs. Sohani Devi and Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler being relatives of Mr. Sharwan Kumar 
Kaler, may be considered interested in this resolution. 
 
Item No. 4 
 
“The term of appointment of Mr. Rajendra Kaler as Whole Time Director of the Company has came to an end 
on 30.04.2024. The present proposal is to seek the member’s approval for the re-appointment of Mr. Rajendra 
Kaler as Whole Time Director with effect from 1st May, 2024. The term of re-appointment of and remuneration 
payable to Mr. Rajendra Kaler as Whole Time Director has been set in the resolution itself. 
 
The Terms and Conditions set out for the re- appointment and payments of remuneration herein may be 
altered and varied from time to time by the Board. 
 
Mr. Rajendra Kaler satisfies all the eligibility conditions set out in Schedule V annexed to the Companies Act, 
2013 for the re- appointment as Whole Time Director of the company and has offered himself for re- 
appointment. The company has made tremendous progress under leadership of Mr. Rajendra Kaler, hence 
your Directors recommend the resolution set out at item no. 4 of the Notice for your approval. 
 
The following additional detailed information as per Section – II of Schedule V is as follows:  
 
I. General Information: 
 

a. Nature of industry:- Manufacturing. 
b. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:- Commercial production 

commenced on 9th July, 2002. 
c. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by 

financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: Not applicable. 
d. Financial performance based on given indicators: 

Financial year 2023-24 Gross Revenue: Rs.12899.22 Lacs 
Profit after Tax: Rs.473.17 Lacs 
Earnings per Share: Rs. 5.02/- 

e. Foreign investments or collaborators, if any:- N. A.  
 

II. Information about the appointee:  
f. Background details:- Mr.RajendraKaler S/o Shri Sharwan Kumar Kaler having qualification of Master 

of Business Administration from U.K., Bachelor of Technology from Rajasthan Technical University, 
Kota and is on the Board of the company since January, 2018 and was appointed as Whole Time 
Director of the Company w.e.f. 13-01-2018. 

g. Past remuneration: -The remuneration drawn by Mr. Rajendra Kaler during FY 2023-24 is Rs. 9.60 
Lacs. 

h. Recognition or awards:- N. A. 
i. Job profile and his suitability:-Mr. Rajendra Kaler is a Whole time Director of the Company since 

2018. He is handling all the technical and production related matters of the Company.   
j. Remuneration Proposed:-Rs. 2, 00,000/- per month. 
k. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the 

position and person:-Taking into account her capabilities and experience and the responsibilities 
shouldered by him, the aforesaid remuneration is commensurate with the remuneration package paid 
to similar appointees in other companies in general 
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l. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:-None except managerial remuneration. 

 
III. Other information:  
 

m. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:- The Company is a profit making company. Only for the 
purpose of payment of Managerial Remuneration, the Company had inadequate profits, which was 
due to reasons beyond its control.  

n. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:- Continued efforts on technology up-
gradation will result into overall improvement in the coming years. 

o. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:-Not ascertainable. 
 
Appointment / re-appointment of Managing Director attracts provisions of section 197 and 198 read with 
schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, according to which it should be authorised by the members in the 
general meeting by passing a special resolution in this respect. Hence, this resolution is placed for 
consideration of members and if thought fit to be passed as a special resolution, with or without modification. 
 
Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler, Mrs. Sohani Devi and Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler being relatives of Mr. Rajendra 
Kaler, may be considered interested in this resolution. 

 
Item No.5 
 
Mrs. Sohani Devi, Whole Time Director is providing its valuable Services to the Company Since January, 2018 
and the Company immensely benefited by it. However, the remuneration paid to Mrs. Sohani Devi, Whole 
Time Director of the Company does not commensurate with her qualification and experience and the quantum 
of services provided by her. Hence on the recommendation of Remuneration Committee, it is decided by the 
board of directors of the company to increase her remuneration substantially from the existing remuneration 
of Rs. 42,000/- per month to Rs. 50,000/- per month as incentive for better performance w.e.f 01.04.2024.  
 
Further, the board of directors are authorised to increase the remuneration once in a year upto 20% and the 
proposed increment in remuneration exceed the authorised limit, hence, this resolution is placed for 
consideration of members and if thought fit to be passed as a special resolution, with or without modification. 

 
 
Item No. 6 
 
Since the Company planned to set standards of good Corporate Governance and to bring more transparency in 
the management and operations of the Company, the board of directors of the Company have decided to 
introduce Non- Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company. 
 
In this regard the board has proposed the appointment of Mr. Nimit Jain (DIN: 10635673) as Non- Executive 
Independent Director in the board meeting held on 20.05.2024 subject to approval of members in the Extra 
Ordinary General Meeting. 
 
The aforesaid appointee has declared that he is not disqualified from being appointed as Director as per the 
provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that she meets the criteria of independence as 
prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. She has also given the consents 
(DIR-2) for the proposed appointment to the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
Further, in the opinion of the Board, based on the declaration of Independence furnished by Mr. Nimit Jain 
(DIN: 10635673), he fulfills the conditions of the appointment as Non-Executive Independent Director as 
specified in the Act and the Rules made there under. 
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The Board recommends the passing of a Special Resolution by the Shareholders for the Appointment of Mr. 
Nimit Jain as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company. 
 
None of the Directors are deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution except to the extent of their 
shareholding. 
 
Item No. 7 
 

Pursuant to provisions of LODR and section 188 of the companies act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with rule 15 of 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to obtain consent of 
the Board and prior approval of the members by resolution for certain Related Party Transactions which 
exceed such sum as is specified in the rules. The aforesaid provisions are not applicable in respect 
transactions entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
 
However, as per the policy adopted by the company on related party transactions and transparency, the 
company every year is obtaining approval of shareholders for the related Part transactions to ensure that all 
the related party transactions entered by the company at any given point of time are according to the prior 
approval of the shareholders.  

 
The following transactions were approved by the Board at their meeting held on 20-05-2024 and also by the 
Audit Committee at their meeting held on 20-05-2024. 

 
  

 S. 
No. 

Nature Of 
Transaction As Per 
Section 188 Of The 
Companies Act, 2013 

Duration Name of the 
Related Party 

Particulars AMOUNTS 
(Rs.) 

1 sale, purchase or 
supply of any goods 
or materials 

One year Supreme 
Industries  

Purchases  Upto 50,00,000/- 

2 sale, purchase or 
supply of any goods 
or materials 

One year Supreme 
Industries  

Sales Upto 15,00,000/- 
 

3 sale, purchase or 
supply of any goods 
or materials 

One Year M/S DLB 
Govindam 
Affordable 
housing 

Sales Upto 1,50,00,000/- 
 

4 sale, purchase or 
supply of any goods 
or materials 

One year Dream Home 
Builders 

Sales Upto 5,00,000/- 
 

5 sale, purchase or 
supply of any goods 
or materials 

One Year Rex Pumps 
Private Limited 

Sales Upto 5,00,000/- 
 

6 sale, purchase or 
supply of any goods 
or materials 

One Year Desi Shopping 
Market Private 
Limited 

Purchase Upto 5,00,000/- 
 

7 leasing of property One Year Mr.Jitendra 
Kumar kaler 

Rent Paid UptoRs. 44,000 per 
month 

8 leasing of property One Year 
Mrs.Sohani  Devi 

Rent Paid UptoRs.50,000per 
month 

9 leasing of property One Year Mr.Shrawan 
Kumar Kaler 

Rent Paid UptoRs.30,000per 
month 

10 appointment to any 
office or place of 
profit in the 
company 

One Year 

Mrs.Sunita 
Kumari 

Salary UptoRs. 25,000 per 
month 
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In view the above, it is proposed to seek approval of the members of the company through Special 
Resolution for the above transactions and the related parties are abstained from voting on the 
resolution as set out at Item No.7. 
 
None of Directors, other than those mentioned herein above upto the extent of their shareholding, 
and Key Managerial Personnel or their relative(s) is/are directly or indirectly concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No.7. 

 
Name of the Director No. of Equity Shares % of Shareholding 
Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler 1864500 19.73% 
Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler 14000 14.81% 
Mrs. Sohani Devi 842500 8.92% 
Mrs. Suman Gadwal  28000 .29% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

     Sd/- 
      
DATE: 20.05.2024    (MONIKA BOHARA) 
PLACE: SIKAR    COMPANY SECRETARY 

M.NO.60048 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and 
hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.  
 
I hereby record my presence at the TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at F-69-A, 
RIICO Industrial Area, Sikar, Rajasthan-332001 at 1:00 P.M. on Monday, the 17th June, 2024.  
 
Full name of the Shareholder: 
 (In capital letters)  
 

DP ID CLIENT ID FOLIO NO NO OF SHARE(S) HELD  
 
 
 
 
 

   

 
 
Signature: 
 
 
Full name of Proxy   :                                                                                                                      (in capital letters) 
Signature   
 
 
NOTE: Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his copy of the Annual Report for 
reference at the meeting 
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PROXY FORM 
 

TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(To be filled in and signed by the Shareholder) 

 
DP ID CLIENT ID FOLIO NO NO OF SHARE(S) HELD  
 
 
 
 
 

   

 
I/We_______________________________________ resident/s of 
_______________________________________ in the district of _____________________ in the state of 
____________________ being a shareholder / shareholders of Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Ltd., hereby 
appoint Shri / Smt. _________________ resident of _________________________________ in the district of 
_____________ in the state of _______________________________ or failing him / her, Shri / Smt. 
___________________ resident of _________________________________________ in the district of 
__________________ in the state of _____________________ as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / 
us and on my / our behalf at the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
Monday, the 17thday of June, 2024 at 1:00 P.M. at F-69-A, RIICO Industrial Area, Sikar, Rajasthan-332001 and 
at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
Signed this _____ day of _________ 2024                _____________________ 
 
 
Signature of first named/sole shareholder 
 
_________________________________ 
Signature of Proxy 
Name:_________________________ 
Address: __________________________________ 
 
Note:- This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered 
office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Affix 

Revenue 
Stamp  
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Board’s Report 

To, 
The Members, 
Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Limited, 
Sikar, Rajasthan. 
 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and audited statement of accounts of your Company for the financial 
year ended on the 31st day of March, 2024. 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:          
         (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the FY 
2023-24 

For the FY 
2022-23 

Revenue from Operations  12861.19 11764.44 

Other Income 31.96 54.47 
Total Income 12893.15 11818.91 
Profit before Depreciation, Financial Expenses and Taxation 1114.85 908.10 
Depreciation &Amortization 180.81 189.54 
Financial Expenses  273.14 215.92 
Profit before Taxation 660.72 502.64 
Less: Provision for Taxation (current & deferred) 187.54 40.99 
Profit after Taxation 473.17 361.65 

 
2. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 
 

The Indian industry witnessed a strong growth and performance during the fiscal 2023-24. The pipe and cable sector also saw 
substantial growth and made significant investments to expand the capacities. Your company aligned its efforts to the growth 
in the overall Indian economy and the industry and performed in the same direction. Apart from Pipe and Cable sector, the bus 
body division of the company also performed outstandingly and contributed significant contribution to the revenue of the 
company. This achievement reflects the effectiveness of the company's strategic initiatives, operational resilience, and 
adaptability in responding to changing market dynamics. 
 
The Directors are pleased to inform that your Company has been able to demonstrate a good growth in business during the FY 
2023-24 and accordingly the gross revenue from operations stood at Rs.12861.19Lakhs as compared to Rs.11764.44 Lakhs in 
the previous year. This reflects a growth of approx. 9.32%, which is commendable. The Net Profit after Tax reported at 
Rs.473.17.10 Lakhs as against Net Profit after tax Rs.361.65.00Lakhs in the previous year. We expect to be able to continue to 
deliver strong growth. 

 
3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE: 
 

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the nature of Business. However, change in the capital structure 
of the company is as follows:- 

 Authorized Share Capital: The authorized share capital of the company has been increased from Rs. 1,00,00,0000 to Rs. 
1,01,00,00,00 vide ordinary resolution passed in Annual General meeting of the shareholders dated 11.07.2023,in order to 
provide the company with the flexibility to issue additional shares in the future, if needed, up to the newly authorized limit. 

 Paid-up Capital:The paid-up capital of the company was Rs. 86,00,0000 divided into 8,60,0000 equity shares of face value Rs. 
10 each as on 31.03.2024. However during the financial year, this has increased to Rs. 9,45,00,000 divided into 94,50,000 
equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each vide special resolution passed in Annual General meeting of the shareholders dated 
11.07.2023. The increase in paid-up capital is attributed to the issuance of 8, 50,000 equity shares on preferential basis.* 

Overall, these changes in the capital structure reflect the company's strategic decisions to strengthen its financial position and 
support its growth objectives. It's important for stakeholders to be aware of such changes as they impact ownership and 
investment considerations. 
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*Preferential Issues 

In the erstwhile Annual General Meeting of the company held on 11th July, 2023, the members (shareholders) of the company 
approved the issuance of 8,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 43.50 per share. In view of the same, the 
company received in-principle approval from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) on 31st August, 2023, for the 
issuance and allotment of the 8,50,000 equity shares. The company allotted the 8,50,000 equity shares at the agreed price of Rs. 
43.50 each. Subsequently, trading approval for these shares were obtained from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE) on 13thSeptember, 2023.The Company confirms that during the period under review, there has been no deviation or 
variation in the utilization of the proceeds raised from the preferential issue. This indicates adherence to the planned utilization 
of funds as approved by the shareholders. The amount raised by the preferential issue, aggregating to Rs. 3,69,75,000 (8,50,000 
shares of Rs. 43.50/- per share {including premium of Rs. 33.50/- per share}), was utilized by the company to purchase shares 
59,90,000 (Fifty Nine Lakhs Ninety Thousand Only) of M/s Swastik Infracity Private Limited, having CIN-
U70101RJ2012PTC037859and registered office situated at T-5, Suvha Laxmi Tower, Central Spine, Vidhyadhar Nagar, Jaipur, 
Rajasthan. Through this investment, your company has acquired approximately 99.84% ownership stake in Swastik Infracity 
Private Limited making it as the Subsidiary company. 
 
Overall, the successful execution of the preferential issue and the utilization of funds for strategic investment in Swastik Infracity 
Private Limited demonstrate prudent capital allocation and strategic growth initiatives by the company. It's essential for 
stakeholders to monitor such transactions and ensure transparency and compliance with regulatory requirements. 

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 

Your company has acquired 59,90,000 (Fifty Nine Lakhs Ninety Thousand Only) i.e. 99.84% of shareholding of M/s Swastik 
Infracity Private Limited, a closely held company having CIN- U70101RJ2012PTC037859, registered with the Registrar of 
Companies (ROC), Jaipur, on 7th September 2023 making it as a subsidiary Company.  
The company ensures transparency and proper disclosures regarding its subsidiary by making the annual accounts and detailed 
information of M/s Swastik Infracity Private Limited available to the shareholders of both the company and in addition are also 
accessible to statutory authorities for inspection at the company's corporate office, reflecting the company's commitment to 
regulatory compliance, transparency, and accountability in its operations and enabling stakeholders to make informed 
decisions and assess the performance and financial position of both the company. 

 
The Details of subsidiary companies, joint ventures and associate companies are provided in Form AOC-1 which is attached as 
Annexure-I to this Report. 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 
During the year under review, the Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserve for the FY 2023-
24. 

 
6. DIVIDEND: 

 
During the year under review, the Profit after tax was recorded at Rs.473.17 Lakhs, however your Directors have decided to 
plough back the profits in business itself due to the increased working capital requirements, hence do not recommend any 
Dividend for the year ended on 31st March, 2024. 

 
7. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 

 
During the year under review, Company was not required to transfer any amount in Investor Education and Protection Fund 
account. 

 
8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE 

OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

 
The company affirms that there have been no material changes or commitments affecting its financial position between the 
end of the financial year on March 31, 2024, and the date of this report. 
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However, Your Company has decided in its Board meeting held on 20.05.2024, to acquire the remaining shares of M/s Swastik 
Infracity Private Limited i.e. 10,000 Equity shares, 0.16% of ownership) with a vision to make it as the Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
company availing the various benefits available to holding company and its wholly owned subsidiary company under the 
companies Act, 2013. 

 
9. PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE AND INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 
The company has not given any loan or guarantee or provide any security covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.However, during the year under review, the company successfully acquired 59,90,000 shares 
(approximately 99.84% ownership stake) of M/s Swastik Infracity Private Limited. This strategic investment has led your 
company becoming the holding company of Swastik Infracity Private Limited.  

 
The details of Investments made by the company under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given as 
follows: 

Particulars Name of Entity Amount 
Investments(Equity Shares) M/s Swastik Infracity Private Limited 59,90,000/- 

M/s Lattey Industries Ltd, 19,61,916/- 
Loans   

NIL Guarantees 
Securities 

 
10. PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS UNDER SECTION 188: 

 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the 
ordinary course of the business. There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with 
Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the 
company at large. 
Details of the transactions are provided in Form AOC-2 which is attached as Annexure-II to this Report. 

 
11. BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR: 

 
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of Company met 6 (Six) times. The details of the Board Meetings and the 
attendance of the directors are provided in below table. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
S.No. Date of Board Meeting Board’s Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 30.05.2023 6 6 
2 10.06.2023 6 4 
3 16.08.2023 6 6 
4 05.10.2023 6 4 
5 09.11.2023 6 4 
6 14.03.2024 6 5 

 
12. DIRECTORS  AND KMP : 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajendra Kaler (DIN-08032024), is liable to retire by rotation 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. 

Further, the term of appointment of Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler, Managing Director and Mr. Rajendra Kaler, Whole Time Director 
of the Company has came to an end on 30.04.2024 and are eligible for re-appointment w.e.f. 01.05.2024 subject to the 
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Other than the above, there was no change in the Directorship of the Company during the year under review. The existing 
board of directors continued to provide leadership and oversight in guiding the company's strategic direction and decision-
making processes. This continuity in directorship reflects the confidence and stability in the company's governance structure, 
ensuring consistency in leadership and management practices. 
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13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149: 

Independent Directors have declared that they meet the criteria of Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and that there is no change in their status of Independence. They have declared that there has been no change in 
their status of independence during the year under review. 

This declaration underscores the integrity and objectivity of the independent directors in carrying out their fiduciary duties and 
responsibilities. It reflects the board's adherence to corporate governance standards and its commitment to transparency and 
accountability in its operations. 

 CODE OF CONDUCT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 

Independent Directors are the persons who are not related with the company in any manner. A code of conduct is required 
for them for their unbiased comments regarding the working of the company. They will follow the code while imparting in 
any activity of the company. The policy deals with the code of conduct of the Independent Directors, their duties and 
responsibilities towards the company, is available at the website www.rpcil.com 

 
By providing transparency regarding the code of conduct for independent directors and its availability for reference, the 
company demonstrates its commitment to upholding high standards of corporate governance and fostering trust among 
stakeholders. 

 
14. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD AND DIRECTORS : 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, a structured questionnaire was prepared after 
taking into consideration various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and its Committees, Culture, 
execution and performance of the specific duties obligations and governance. 

The Performance of the Committees and Independent Directors were evaluated by the entire board of Directors except for the 
Director being evaluated. The Performance evaluation of the Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and Board as a Whole was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The board of Directors expressed their Satisfaction with the outcome of evaluation 
and the process followed thereof. 

15. AUDITORS: 
 
 Statutory Auditors 

The company Auditors M/s Happy Kedawat & Company, Chartered Accountants, (FRN 030525C), hold office of Auditors 
until the conclusion of 23rdAnnual General Meeting and it is proposed to ratify their appointment at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

The Auditor’s Report issued by M/s Happy Kedawat & Company, Chartered Accountants for the year ended 31st March, 
2024 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Report is enclosed with the Financial 
Statements in this Annual Report. There are no Qualifications/Adverse Comments made by the Auditors in their 
Report.The comments made by Auditors in their Auditor’s Report read with relevant notes thereon are self-explanatory in 
nature and hence do not call for any further comments under section 134 of Companies Act, 2013. 

The Auditor’s Report is unmodified i.e. it does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. 

 Secretarial Auditors 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of The Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s JPS & Associates, Jaipur a firm of 
Company Secretaries in Practice to conduct Secretarial Audit of the company for the FY 2023-24.  

By appointing M/s JPS  & Associates for the Secretarial Audit and providing stakeholders with access to the Secretarial 
Audit Report, the company demonstrates its commitment to accountability, transparency, and compliance with regulatory 
standards. 
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The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 is annexed herewith as Annexure-III.  

 
 INTERNAL AUDITORS: 
 

In accordance with provision of section 138 of the companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, your company has 
appointed CA Sonu Kumar Jangir as an internal auditor of the company and takes their suggestions and recommendation to 
improve and strengthen the internal control system. 
 
CA Sonu Kumar Jangir will be responsible for conducting internal audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the company's 
internal control systems, risk management practices, the internal auditor will provide valuable insights, suggestions, and 
recommendations to the management and the board of directors to enhance and strengthen the company's internal 
control environment. 
 
By appointing an internal auditor and emphasizing the company's commitment to governance and continuous 
improvement, stakeholders are assured of the company's proactive approach to risk management and compliance. 

 
16. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD : 

 
The Company has complied the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, issued by Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section - 118 (10) of the Act during the year under Report. 

 
17. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM : 

 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had approved the Policy on Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower. This Policy inter-alia provides 
a direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 
Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
and that no complaints were received during the year. Copy of Such adopted policy is available on company website 
www.rpcil.com 

 
18. CFO CERTIFICATIONS: 

As part of our commitment to financial integrity and transparency, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) certifies that the financial 
statements presented in this report fairly represent the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the company 
in accordance with applicable accounting standards and regulatory requirements. 

Further, the CFO affirms that the company maintains adequate internal control systems to safeguard assets, ensure the 
accuracy of financial reporting, and comply with applicable laws and regulations. The CFO confirms that the company has 
complied with all relevant legal and regulatory requirements governing financial reporting, including disclosure obligations and 
transparency standards. The CFO certifies that the information provided in this report, including financial data and disclosures, 
is accurate and complete to the best of their knowledge and belief. 

The certification provided by the Chief Financial Officer underscores our commitment to upholding the highest standards of 
financial governance and transparency. Stakeholders can rely on the integrity and accuracy of the financial information 
presented in this report. 

Additionally, CFO certification adds credibility to the financial information presented in the board report and reassures 
stakeholders about the accuracy and reliability of the company's financial reporting. The CFO certification is 
attachedasAnnexure IV for stakeholders' reference. 

 
 
19. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

 
The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk threatening the Company’s existence are very 
minimal. 
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20. WEBLINK FOR ANNUAL RETURN 

 
As required under Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 including amendments there under, the Annual Return filed with the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) for the Financial Year 2023-24 is available on the web-link of the Company at www.rpcil.comand the 
Annual Return for Financial Year 2023-24 will be made available in the due course of time after Annual General Meeting. 
 

21. DEPOSITS: 
 
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 
22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS  AND THEIR ADEQUCY: 

 
The company has in place Internal Financial Control system, commensurate with size & complexity of its operations to ensure 
proper recording of financial and operational information & compliance of various internal controls other regulatory & 
statutory compliances. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from the Internal 
Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. Internal Auditors’ comprising of professional 
Chartered Accountants monitor & evaluate the efficacy of Internal Financial Control system in the company, its compliance 
with operating system, accounting procedures & policies at all the locations of the company. Based on their report of Internal 
Audit function, corrective actions in the respective area are undertaken & controls are strengthened. Significant audit 
observations & corrective action suggested are presented to the Audit Committee. 

 
23. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS  

 
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and Cost Auditors have not reported any instances of 
fraud committed in the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit Committee under section 143(12) and Rule 13 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  

 
A statement depicting details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo in the 
manner as prescribed In Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 [Chapter IX] is annexed hereto and forms part of 
this Report as Annexure-V. 

 
25. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 

A Statement providing Information required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 is annexed hereto and forms 
part of this Report as Annexure- VI. 

 
26. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

 
The Management discussion & analysis report forming part of this report is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure- VII. 

 
27. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 
As required under section 134(5) of the Companies Act, the directors hereby confirm that: 
(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures; 
(ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the year ; 

(iii) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities. 

(iv) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
(v) The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliances with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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28. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Company has formed an audit committee as designed under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, of which the 
following directors are members: 
 
1. Mr. Anil Kumar, Chairman 
2. Mr. ShubashMeel, Member 
3. Mrs. Sohani Devi, Member (till 10.06.2023) 
4. Mr. Rajendra  Kaler, Member  (w.e.f 10.06.2023) 

 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows: 
a) To review compliance with internal control systems;  
b) To review the findings of the Internal Auditor relating to various functions of the Company; 
c) To hold periodic discussions with the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company concerning the accounts of 

the Company, internal control systems, scope of audit and observations of the Auditors/Internal Auditors; 
d) To review the financial results of the Company before submission to the Board; 
e) To make recommendations to the Board on any matter relating to the financial management of the Company, including 

Statutory & Internal Audit Reports; 
f) Recommending the appointment of cost auditors and statutory auditors and fixation of their remuneration; 
g) Review of Cost Audit Report; 
h) Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies; 
i) To review compliance related with whistle blower mechanism. 

29. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
The Company has formed a remuneration committee as designed under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, of which the 
following directors are members: 
 
1. Mr. Shubash Meel, Chairman 
2. Mr. Anil Kumar, Member 
3. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler, Member 

 
The Committee has 1 meeting during the year under review. 
 
The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows: 
 
a) Review the performance of the Managing Director and the Wholetime Directors, after considering the Company’s 

performance. 
b) Recommend to the Board remuneration including salary, perquisites and commission to be paid to the Company’s 

Managing Director and Wholetime Directors. 
c) Finalise the perquisites package of the Managing Director and Wholetime Directors within the overall ceiling fixed by the 

Board.  
d) Recommend to the Board, retirement benefits to be paid to the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors under the 

Retirement Benefit Guidelines adopted by the Board.  
e) Recommend to the Board, annual evaluation of performance of Managing Director, Executive Director, Non Executive 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 
 

 
30. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
The Company has formed a stakeholder’s relationship committee as designed under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, of 
which the following directors are members:  
 
a) Mr. Shubash Meel, Chairman 
b) Mr. Anil Kumar, Member 
c) Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler, Member 
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During the year one meeting was conducted. 
 
The broad terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as follows: 

 
a) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of 

shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general 
meetings etc. 

b) Review of   measures   taken   for   effective   exercise   of   voting   rights   by shareholders.  
c) Review  of  adherence  to  the  service  standards  adopted  by  the  listed  entity  in respect of various services being 

rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  
d) Review  of the  various  measures  and  initiatives  taken  by  the  listed  entity  for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 

dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the 
company. 
 

31. CSR POLICY AND AMOUNT SPENT THEREON: 
 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, the company's Net Profit before Tax in the financial year 2022-2023 triggered the 
CSR limits provided under section 135 of the companies Act, 2013, prompting the company to duly constituted Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) for conducting CSR activities, the composition of which is as follows: 

 
1. Mr. Subhash Meel (Chairman) 
2. Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler (Member of Committee) 
3. Mr. Anil Kumar (Member of Committee) 

 
The broad terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as follows: 

a) Formulating and recommending to the Board the CSR Policy and activities to be undertaken by the Company in 
compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules there under; 

b) Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities of the Company; 
c) Overseeing the implementation of CSR activities and projects; 
d) Evaluating performance of the Company in the area of CSR; 
e) Monitoring implementation of CSR policy of the Company from time to time; 
f) Carry out any other function as directed by the Board and/or mandated by any statutory authority through any 

notification, amendment or modification from time to time. 
 

The CSR Committee met three times during the Financial Year 2023-24. 
 
The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the 
Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure-VIII of this report in the format prescribed in the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.  
 

32. REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS: 
 

The Company has appointed KFin Technologies Limited as its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, whose content details are as 
follows:- 

 
KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED  
"Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally 
Hyderabad Telangana- 500032"  

 
33. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
The Corporate Governance requirements as stipulated under the of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the 
company; however, the Company adheres to good corporate practices at all times. 
 

34. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING 
 

The Board of Directors has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the requirement of the Securities & Exchange 
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Insider Trading Policy of the Company lays down 
guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company as well as 
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consequences of disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company as well as consequences of violation. The 
Policy has been formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals by employees and to maintain the highest ethical 
standards of dealing in Company’s shares. 

 
The Insider Trading Policy of the Company covering the code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures of unpublished 
price sensitive information and code of conduct for the prevention of Insider Trading is available on the website www.rpcil.com 

 
 

Maintenance of Structured Digital Database (“SDD”) has been mandatory since April 1, 2019 in view of the relevant 
provisions under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015 (‘PIT Regulations’) .The Company Have Installed 
SDD Services from “Orion Legal Supplies”. Company regularly entries maintained in this software and submitted report 
quarterly to stock exchanges. Regulation 3(5) & (6) of PIT Regulations, The responsibility of ensuring that the SDD is 
maintained for sharing of any UPSI is upon the board of directors of such entity. Further in terms of Regulation 9A of the PIT 
Regualtions, the managing director and the chief executive officer or such other analogous  
 
person is responsible for putting in place effective systems of internal controls to ensure various requirements specified in 
theregulations are complied with . The Audit Committee is responsible to verify the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal controls atleast annually. 

 
35. CODE OF CONDUCT TO REGULATE MONITIOR AND REPORT TRADING BY INSIDERS 

 
There are many information’s that are important and price sensitive and required to be kept confidential on the part of the 
company, if the information is disclosed this will harm the image of the company, in the definition of the insider it will include 
all the persons connected with the company including the all employee’s so policy relating to this is available on the website of 
the company. 

 
This policy is applicable to all employee’s and KMP’s of the company to not to disclose the confidential information of the 
company which affects the performance of the company.  
 

36. CODE OF CONDUCT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
 

Certain code of conduct is required from the senior management including the Board of Directors of the Company; they have to 
be abiding by the rules and laws applicable on the company for the good governance and business ethics. It describes their 
responsibility and accountability towards the company. Policy of the company relating to this is available for the access at the 
website www.rpcil.com 
 

37. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 : 
 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and 
redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual 
harassment at workplace. The said policy including committee composition details is available on the website of the company 
at www.rpcil.com. 
In compliance with legal requirements, the Company has formed an Internal Committee under the applicable act to address 
and prevent instances of harassment in the workplace. 
 
The composition of the Internal Committee is as follows: 
1. Mrs. Sohani Devi (Chairperson) 
2. Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler (Member) 
3. Mr. Subhash Meel (Member) 
 
 
 During the period under review, the Company had not received any complaints on sexual harassment under Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
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38. DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY OF INFORMATION & EVENTS 

 
The Listed Entity is always required to be committed to being open and transparent with all stakeholders and in disseminating 
information in a fair and timely manner. Investors of the entity also expect timely and accurate information from the company 
as its supports and foster confidence in the quality and integrity of information released by the Company. So under this policy, 
the management of the company determines the material events of the company and disclosed them for their investors. 

 
Under this policy company may decide all those events and information which is material and important and is compulsory to 
be disclosed for the investors about the company, policy related to this is available at the website www.rpcil.com 

 
39. PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS 

 
The Corporate records need to be kept at the places and manner defined under the Act. The Company accordingly has policy in 
this regard. 
 

40. ARCHIVAL POLICY 
 

This policy deals with the retention and archival of the corporate record, these records are prepared by the employees of the 
company under this policy any material information relating to the company shall be hosted on the website of the company for 
the investors and public and remain there for period of five year.  
 
 

41. COMPANY’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Company has in Place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy with respect to appointment and remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The appointment/reappointment of Directors on the Board is 
subject to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). Based on the recommendation of the 
NRC, the remuneration of Executive Director is proposed in accordance with the provisions of the Act which comprises of basic 
salary, perquisites, allowances and commission for approval of the members. further, based on the recommendation of the 
Board the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors comprising of sitting fees and commission in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act which comprises of basic salary, perquisites, allowances and commission for approval of the members  
further based on the recommendation of the Board the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors comprising of sitting fees and 
commission in accordance with the provisions of the Act is proposed for the approval of the members. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of 
a Director and other matters provided u/s 178(3) of the Act is available on Company’s website and accessible through weblink 
www.rpcil.com 

 
 
42. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 
Your Company and its Directors take this opportunity to record their appreciation of the assistance and support extended by all 
the Government Departments, Banks, Financial Institutions, Consultants and Shareholders of the company. The Directors also 
express their sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts put in by all the employees & workers and for their continued 
contribution for the improved performance of your company during the year. 

 
We also extend our heartfelt thanks to all employees and workers for their dedication, hard work, and commitment to 
excellence. Your relentless efforts have been instrumental in driving the company's performance and achieving our goals.As we 
move forward, we remain committed to upholding the highest standards of corporate governance, transparency, and 
accountability. Together, we will continue to pursue growth opportunities and create value for all stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
F-69-A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR, RAJASTHAN 

CIN-L31300RJ2002PLC017714 
Phone No.:01572-245009                                                                               Email –id:-ho@rpcil.com 

 
 
 

Thank you once again for your invaluable support and contributions to the success of our company. 

 
 

 For and on behalf of the Board 
 FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
   
  

                                                                            Sd/- 
 
                                                                           Sd/- 

   
      SHARWAN KUMAR KALER RAJENDRA KALER 
PLACE: SIKAR (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) 
DATE: 20-05-2024    DIN-01050715 DIN-08032024 
 



Annexure-I 
Form AOC-I 

(Information pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of Companies Act 2013 read with 
Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Statement containing salient features of financial statements of subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures 

 
Part A – Subsidiaries: 

S.No. Particulars Amount in Rs. Remarks 

1 Name of Subsidiary 
Swastik Infracity Private 

Limited  
2 Share Capital  60000000.00  
3 Reserves & Surplus 79812.00  
4 Total Assets 63614818.00  
5 Total Liabilities 3535006  
6 Investments  0  
7 Turnover 0  
8 Profit / (Loss) before Tax 166636  

9 
Provision for Tax including 
deferred tax 30256  

10 Profit / (Loss) after Tax 136380  
11 Proposed Dividend 0  
12 Percentage Share-holding (direct) 99.84%  
13 Percentage Share-holding (indirect) NIL  
14 Total Percentage Share-holding 99.84%  

 
1. Names of the Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – None 
2. Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated / sold during the year – None 

 
Part B – Associates and Joint Ventures  
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 
Ventures: - NIL 

   

S.No. Particulars Associates 
Joint 

Ventures 
1 Name of Associates / Joint Ventures    None 
2 Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures 

held by the company on the year end 
- Number 
- Amount of Investment in 

Associates / Joint Venture 
- Extend of Holding (%) 

    
 

NA 
NA 
NA 

3 Description of how there is significant 
influence 

   NA 

4 Reason why the associate / joint 
venture is not consolidated 

   NA 

5 Networth attributable to Shareholding 
as per latest audited Balance Sheet 

   NA 

6 Profit / (Loss) for the year 
- Considered in Consolidation 
- Not Considered in Consolidation 

   NA 

 
1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations – None 
2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year – None 



 
Annexure-II 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act 

And Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto: 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:    

S.No. Particulars  Remarks 
1. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  

 
 
 
 
 

NIL 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
3. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions 
4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, 

if any 
5. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 
6. Date(s) of approval by the Board 
7. Amount paid as advances, if any 
8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to Section 188 
 

2.  
Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis as follows:         

                        (In Lakhs) 

S. 
No. 

Name of the Related Party Nature of Transaction 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements or 
transactions including 

the value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, if 
any 

1. 
Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler Managerial 

Remuneration 
20.16 30/05/2023 NIL 

2. 
Mr. RajendraKaler Managerial 

Remuneration 13.44 
30/05/2023 NIL 

3. 
Mrs. Sohani Devi Managerial 

Remuneration 5.04 
30/05/2023 NIL 

4. 
Mrs. SunitaKumari Salary 2.40 30/05/2023 NIL 

5. 
Mr. Shrawan Kumar Kaler Rent Paid 1.44 30/05/2023 NIL 

6. 
Mrs. Sohani  Devi Rent Paid 7.32 30/05/2023 NIL 

7. 
Mr. Jitendra Kumar kaler Rent Paid 2.64 30/05/2023 NIL 

8. 
Supreme Industries Purchase 

Upto 50.00 Lakhs 
(Actual Purchase 5.32) 30/05/2023 NIL 

9. 
Supreme Industries Sales 

Upto15.00 lakhs 
(Actual Sales 4.23) 30/05/2023 NIL 

10. 

M/S DLB Govindam Affordable 
housing Sales 

Upto1.50 Crores 
(Actual Sales 1.02) 30/05/2023 NIL 



11. 
Dream Home Builders Sales 

Upto 5.00 lakhs 
(Actual Sales 0.034) 30/05/2023 NIL 

12. 
Rex Pumps Private Limited Sales 

Upto5.00 lakhs 
(Actual Sales 0.00) 30/05/2023 NIL 

13. 
Desi Shopping Market Private 

Limited Purchase 
Upto5.00 lakhs 

(Actual Sales 3.44) 30/05/2023 NIL 

14. 
Desi Shopping Market Private 

Limited Sales 
Upto500.00 Lakhs 
(Actual Sales 0.47) 30/05/2023 NIL 

15. Pagric Ethopia PLC Purchase 
Upto500.00 Lakhs 
(Actual Sales 0.0) 30/05/2023 NIL 

 
 
 
 For and on behalf of the Board 
 FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
   
                                          Sd/-                               Sd/- 
   
                             SHARWAN KUMAR KALER RAJENDRA KALER 
PLACE: SIKAR              (MANAGING DIRECTOR)             (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) 
DATE: 20-05-2024 DIN-01050715                           DIN-08032024 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Limited, 
Sikar. 
 
(I) We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by Rex Pipes and Cables 
Industries Limited (hereinafter called the Company).Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts and 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 

(II) Based on our verification of the Company's statutory registers and records, minutes 
books, forms and returns filed with various authorities and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information and explanation provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, 
We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 broadly complied with various 
provisions of statutory enactments listed here under at clause (III) and that the 
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent 
and in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 
(III) We have examined Minutes books of the General Meetings, Board Meetings and 

Committee Meetings, Forms and Returns filed with various Authorities, the Statutory 
Registers, and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024, according to the provisions of:  

 
1. The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under; 
2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made 

there under; 
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there 

under; 
4. Specific Laws applicable to the company. 
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(IV) The Following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):- 
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; 
 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading 
Regulations 2015); 
 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

(V) As observed and as per the information and explanations given to us, since the company 
did not receive any Foreign Direct Investment and / or External Commercial Borrowings 
and did not make any Overseas Direct Investment, the provisions of Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under relating 
thereto were not applicable to the company during the year under review. 
 

(VI) We have also examined the compliance with applicable clauses of the Secretarial 
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
 

(VII) Based on our above mentioned examination and verification of records and information 
and explanation provided to us by the management, officers, employees and staff of the 
company, we report that during the financial year under review the Company has 
broadly complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above. 

 
(VIII) We further report that having regards to the size and nature of the company the Board 

of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive 
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Directors and Independent Directors. No changes took place in the composition of 
board of directors during the year under review.  
 

(IX) We further report that keeping in view the size and nature of the company, in our 
opinion adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
(X) We further report that decisions were observed to be carried out by majority however, 

we do not come across or explained with any instance of dissenting directors / 
members, whose views need to be separately recorded in the minute’s books as such. 

 
(XI) We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
 

(XII) We further report that during the audit period the company has issued and allotted 
8,50,000equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 43.50 per share on preferential 
basis aggregating to Rs. 3,69,75,000/- to specified group of persons and the company 
has duly complied with all the applicable provisions of Section 42 and 62(1)(c) and rules 
made there under along with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and  the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
(XIII) We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 

 
(i) Sweat equity; 
(ii) Buy-back of securities; 
(iii) Merger/ amalgamation / reconstruction etc.; 
(iv) Foreign technical collaborations. 

 
Our above report is subject to the following:  
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1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based 

on our audit; 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion; 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

books of accounts of the Company; 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation, in writing as 

well as verbal, about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 

events etc.; 

 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards etc. is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 

was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis; 

 

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or the effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

7. The compilation of the Secretarial Audit Report and the above mentioned contents are 

without any bias and/ or prejudice. 

FOR JPS & ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 
 

 

 

DATE:20.05.2024 

PLACE :SIKAR 

Sd/-

(VISVASH GOYAL) 

PARTNER 

C.P.No.:-13099 

UDIN:-A024787F000425176 



 
 

 
Annexure –IV 

 
To 
The Board of Directors  
Rex Pipes and cables Industries Limited 
F-69A, Riico Industrial Area, Sikar, Rajasthan-332001 

 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

 
As stipulated under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that: 
 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st 
March, 2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief : 
1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 

or contain statements that might be misleading: 
2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

B. These are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year ended 31st March 2024 which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the 
company’s code of conduct. 
 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company 
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and the steps we have taken or purpose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee: 
1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year  
2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and  
3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s 
internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
For Rex Pipes and cables Industries Limited 
 

 
Sd/- 

Mr. Kanhiya Lal Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 
 



 
Annexure –V 

 
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 
 
Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and 
outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided as below: 
 
 

PARTICULARS REMARKS 
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  
 the steps taken or impact on 

conservation of energy; 
The Company has undertaken various energy 
efficient practices by way of balancing of plant and 
Machineries from time to time and by making 
suitable modification in the manufacturing process 
in order to save energy and is committed to become 
an environment friendly organization 

 the steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy; 

The Company has installed Solar Plant as an 
alternate source of energy. 

 the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment; 

NIL 

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  
 the efforts made towards technology 

absorption; 
NIL 

 the benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution; 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 in case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)- 

  (a) the details of technology imported; 
 (b) the year of import; 
 (c) whether the technology been fully 

absorbed; 
 (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorption has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof; Not applicable 
since 5 years period is over 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 the expenditure incurred on Research 
and Development 

Not separately quantifiable 



 

 
 

 
 
 
C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO: 

 

 The Foreign Exchange earned in 
terms of actual inflows during the 
year and the Foreign Exchange outgo 
during the year in terms of actual 
outflows 

INFLOW:- NIL 
OUTFLOW:-  USD 48600 EQUIVALENT TO INR 
4136062.52 

 
 
 For and on behalf of the Board 
 FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
   
                                           Sd/-                                               Sd/- 
   
      SHARWAN KUMAR KALER RAJENDRA KALER 
PLACE: SIKAR (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) 
DATE:  20-05-2024    DIN-01050715 DIN-08032024 

 
 



Annexure- VI 
 

A Statement providing Information required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Amendment Rules, 2016 is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report as Annexure- VI. 
 
(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024: and  
 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Managing Director Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in the financial year 2023-2024. 

 
Name Designation *Remuneration 

of each Director 
& KMP for 
Financial Year 
2023-2024 
(Amount in) 

% 
increase/decrease 
in remuneration in 
the Financial Year 
2023-202 as 
compared to the 
Financial Year 
2022-2023 

Ratio of 
remuneration of 
each Directors to 
median 
remuneration of 
employees 

A. Directors     
Mr. Sharwan 
Kumar Kaler 

Managing 
Director 

2016000 40% 12.89 

Mr. Rajendra 
kaler 

Wholetime 
Director 

1344000 40% 8.60 

Mrs. Sohani Devi Wholetime 
Director 

504000 40% 3.22 

B. Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

    

Mr. Kanhiya Lal 
Sharma 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

547000 NA 3.50 

Miss Monika 
Bohara 

Company 
Secretary 

266000 NA 1.70 

 
Notes: 
1. Median remuneration of all employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 is 

156334.5/- 
 

2. The Percentage increase/decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial 
year 2023-2024 

 
Particulars Financial Year 

2023-2024 
(Amount in) 

Financial Year 
2022-2023 
(Amount in) 

Increase (%) 

Median 
remuneration of all 
employees 

156334.5 148591.5 5.210 
 

 
 
 



3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company. 
        There were 80 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2024. 
 
 
4. Average percentile increase/decrease already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in 
the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the remuneration. 
- Average increase in the remuneration of all employees exclude KMP is 10%. 
- Increase in Salary is based on the Company’s Performance, individual performance, inflation, 

prevailing industry trends, benchmarks and pandemic situation. 
 

 



Annexure- VII 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW 

Global real GDP is forecasted to grow by 3.1 percent in 2024, from 2.2 percent in 2023. Most of the 
weakness will be concentrated in Europe, Latin America, and the US. Asian economies are expected to 
drive most of global growth in 2023, as they benefit from ongoing reopening dynamics and less intense 
inflationary pressures compared to other regions. 

Despite rapid monetary tightening, inflation is proving persistent in many key economies, particularly on 
the back of strength in job markets amid severe labor shortages. Therefore, monetary policy is likely to 
remain restrictive throughout most of 2023 despite financial stability concerns (see our analysis here). 
Tight monetary policy acts as a break on economic activity and will likely lead to increases in 
unemployment rates in various economies, particularly in Europe and the US. 

Global real GDP growth should pick up steam in 2024 to 2.5 percent and be more evenly distributed 
among regions. Tailwinds to growth in 2024 will largely come from fading shocks related to the 
pandemic, elevated inflation, and monetary policy tightening. However, growth rates in 2024 and 
beyond are likely to be below the pre pandemic trend, given ongoing supply-side weakness (e.g., ageing 
demographics worldwide and slow productivity growth). Inflation, while lower than experienced 
currently, may remain relatively elevated for several reasons, including expected persistence in labor 
shortages, deglobalization, and the global energy transition. 

The 10-year economic outlook signals a prolonged period of disruptions and uncertainties for 
businesses, but there are also opportunities. Global growth will return to its slowing trajectory once the 
2022-2023 regional recessions end, with mature markets making smaller contributions to global GDP 
over the next decade. Nonetheless, there are still opportunities for firms to invest in both mature 
markets—given their wealth and need for innovation to compensate for shrinking labor forces—and 
emerging markets—given their need for both physical and digital infrastructure to support their sizable 
and young labor forces. Keys to ensuring growth over the longer term include developing new lines of 
business; strengthening corporate culture; embracing digital transformation and automation; recruiting 
for talent with new skills not currently represented in the company; and maximizing the hybrid work 
model where it makes sense. 
 
 
INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW 

The Indian economy displayed speedy and steady growth over the last year on the back of various 
Government initiatives and reforms and challenges faced due to Corona virus (COVID-19) and lockdown. 
The growth outlook was optimistic prior to the unexpected COVID-19) outbreak. The outbreak of second 
wave and extension of relief package in various forms has increased the budget deficit Owing to the 
massive impact of COVID-19, all the major economies of the world have gone through some form of 
lockdown or social distancing. But mankind buckled up and pooled the resources together and our 
frontline warriors fought hard, and various Government vaccination programmes proved to be major 



success in Tight against this unprecedented outbreak. The Central government declared the Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) for the financial year 2021-22 stands at 8.7 per cent. Indians economic growth 
in the current year is estimated to be 9.2 per cent, highest among all large economies. For 2022-23, the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has projected Indians GDP growth rate to be 7.2 percent. 

The Government has implemented various measures including free vaccination drive other economic 
and essential reforms to overcome from the impact of this outbreak and accelerate the growth, These 
measures were not limited to preventive health care and vaccination doses but also to extend economic 
impact such as reduction in repo rates etc.  

 
OUTLOOK 

The Govt. of India has taken various significant monetary and liquidity measures to mitigate the adverse 
impact of COVID-19 and in order to mitigate and boost the economic activities. The announcement of 
stimulus package expects to foster long-term employment and opportunities that will strengthen the 
economy further in coming years. After the successful implementation of vaccination drives, the Indian 
economy was ready to get back in the race in short period of time. The Company expecting an 
accelerated growth in business in coming years. 

 

INDIAN PIPING INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

The domestic plastic pipes industry size is estimated at Rs. 315 billion; of which the organized players 
account for 60% of the market share. Although the pandemic caused most sectors to evaluate how they 
operate, the construction industry landed itself a unique opportunity to innovate and grow. Organized 
players have topped industry growth as they continue to gain market share from unorganized 
manufacturers. The integration in the PVC pipe market is expected to accelerate. With limited supply 
and rising PVC resin costs, the regional and unorganized players are expected to face significant sourcing 
and working capital challenges in the coming years. The major driver leading to growth is Government 
infrastructural spending, irrigation sector, replacement of aging pipelines, increasing constructions and 
industrial production among others. There has been growing adoption in PVC/CPVC pipes owing to its 
easy installation, corrosion and flame resistant, environmentally sound and durability. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THE GOVERNMENT IMPETUS 

The unorganized players in the plastic pipes industry were already finding it difficult to gain advantage 
on the price and market outreach. After the COVID-19 scenario, the companies with high debt and weak 
cash flow are bound to head towards consolidation resulting in leading of market by organized players 
with opportunities to acquire regional players at lower valuation. 

CHALLENGES 

Cost of raw material 

The raw material prices increases to a great extent in this financial year also and the production cost of 
the players operating in the industry also affected a lot. Moreover, the increase in raw material prices 
impact the end users and pipe manufacturing players, as the cost is to be passed down to the 
downstream industry users. 

 



Risk Management 

The Company has in place an effective risk management framework to primarily control business and 
operational risks. The major risk areas are systematically and periodically reviewed by the senior 
management. At various levels, comprehensive policies and procedures will help to identify, mitigate 
and monitor risks. By taking such proactive measures, the Company ensures that strategic business 
objectives are achieved seamlessly in a steady and efficient manner. During the financial year under 
review, rating for fund based facilities of the Company has been upgraded and revised from BWR BBB to 
BWR BBB+. Further, your Company has an intricate Risk Management procedure which depicts business 
risk and operational risks that are supported by policy framework. 

Human Resource 

The Human Resource division of the company plays a vital role in hiring, training, managing and 
retaining employees to build a group of talented workforces. So that they can reach their full potential 
and work diligently towards the growth of the organization. The Company has created a level playing 
field space, whereon equal opportunities to all employees is provided. With this belief, it has enhanced 
employee morale, boosted productivity and reduced people absenteeism.  

Internal Control System and their adequacy 

The Company considers that internal control is one of the key supports of governance which provide 
freedom to the management within an outline of appropriate checks and balances. REX Pipes and 
Cables Industries Limited have a strong internal control framework, which was instituted considering the 
size, nature and risk in the business. The Companies internal control environment provide assurance on 
efficient conduct of operations, security of Assets, prevention and detection of frauds/errors, accuracy 
and completeness of accounting records, timely preparation of authentic financial information and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulation. The system and process are continuously improved by 
adopting best in class processes, automation and implementing latest IT tools. 

Introductions 

Bus Body building is an important activity. The Chassis are supplied by Automobile manufacturers, and 
body is built by automobile body builders as per the requirements of the customer and specifications of 
the different state Transport Undertakings. 

Market Potential 

Bus is used as the most common public transport vehicle in our country. Different State Transport 
Undertakings are playing their buses for community public from one place to another and from one 
State to another. Apart from these undertakings, Private Bus Operators, travel agencies etc. are also 
operating buses on permit basis. With rapid changes in the society, now days it has become necessary to 
provide good and efficient service to the public. Also with the rapid industrialization, Public is moving 
very frequently from one place to another using public transport, private transport in the form of buses 
will increase in the coming years. 

Overview of the Copper and Wire Industry 

The copper and wire industry plays a critical role in various sectors of the economy, including 
construction, electronics, telecommunications, and transportation. Copper, known for its excellent 
conductivity and malleability, is one of the most widely used metals globally. Wires, often made from 
copper due to its conductivity properties, are essential components in electrical and electronic systems. 



The global copper market size was valued at over $150 billion in 2020 and is expected to grow at a 
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of around 4% from 2021 to 2026. This growth is primarily driven 
by increasing demand from the construction and electrical sectors, particularly in emerging economies. 

The copper and wire industry continues to be a vital component of the global economy, driven by 
demand from various sectors and technological advancements. However, addressing environmental and 
social challenges is imperative for sustainable growth and responsible business practices. 

AUTOMOTIVE INDUSTRY IN INDIA 

 Being the fourth largest producer of Automobiles in the world, with an average annual production of 
more than 4 million motor vehicles, India plays an important role in the global automobile industry. 
India is gradually developing into the manufacturing hub of automobiles due to low-cost 

Production owing to the easy availability of affordable labour and raw materials. The export market is 
well supported by a weak currency. India is the second- largest bus manufacturer, second largest two 
wheeler manufacturer, seventh largest in commercial vehicles, sixth largest in passenger vehicles and 
third largest heavy trucks manufacturer in the world. 

INDIAN MARKET FOR BUS BODIES 

After the Slump heralded by the 2020 COVID pandemic, the year 2023 witnessed a robust demand for 
buses in India. After a gap of three long years, bus sales in India registered a strong uptick, driven by the 
increasing necessity for public mobility and fleet replacement. 

As the Indian automotive industry continues to evolve, the surge in bus sales for 2023 reflects a resilient 
market adapting to changing dynamics and growing emphasis on sustainable and electric mobility 
solutions. 

The Indian Bus Market is poised for continued growth and innovation in the years ahead. 

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES FOR THE AUTOMOBILE INDUSTRY  

The Government of India encourages foreign investment in the automobile sector and has allowed 100% 
FDI under the automatic route. Some of the recent initiatives taken by the Government of India 

In Union Budget 2023, the government announced a slew of measures to boost the automobile industry 
including a reduction in the basic customs duty rate from 21% to 13%, an increase in rebate on personal 
income tax from ₹5 lakh per annum to ₹7 lakh per annum, focus on greener mobility, increase in funds 
allocation towards Vehicle Scrappage Policy and help of the centre government to scrap old vehicles. At 
the same time, with a focus on local production, the government raised the customs duty on fully 
imported luxury cars and EVs from 60% to 70%.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Annexure-VIII 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES  

  
1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy of the company 

 
RPCIL’s CSR policy is aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its focus on 
education & skilldevelopment, health & wellness, environmental sustainability including 
biodiversity, energy & waterconservation, rural developmentagriculture, Research and 
development. Also embedded in this objective is support to the marginalized cross section of 
the society byproviding opportunities to improve their quality of life. Specifically, the 
company intends to concentrate on activities related to the fields of Education, Rural 
Development, reducing inequalities faced by backward classes and benefits for Community at large 
and Environment etc.   
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee:  
 
S.  

No. 
Name of 
Director 

Designation / 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year 

1 Subhash Meel Chairman  3 3 

2 Sharwan Kumar 
Kaler 

Managing 
Director 

3 3 

3 Anil Kumar Independent 
Director 

3 3 

 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR 

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: The 
Company’s CSR policy can be accessed on https://www.rpcil.com 
 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). Not 
Applicable, since average CSR spends of the Company in the past three financial Years is less 
than Rs. 10.00crores per year. 

  
5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.307.85 Lakhs 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 
Rs.6.17Lakhs. 
(c)Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous  
financial years. NIL 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7b+7c-7d):- Rs.6.17 Lakhs 

 
 



 
6. (a)(i)Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:   

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 
S. 

No 
CSR project 
or activity 
identified. 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered. 

Projects or 
Programs 
(1) Local area or 
other 
(2) Specify the 
state and district 
where projects 
and programs 
wereundertaken. 

Proje-
ct 

Dura-
tion 
(in 

month
s) 

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
projects or 
programs 

wise   
(Amount 

in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent on 
the 
projects or 
programs  
Sub-heads: 
(1) Direct 
expenditur
e on 
projects or 
programs.  
(2)  
Overheads 
: 

Cumulati-ve 
expendit—

ure upto the 
reporting, 

period.  

Amount 
spent: 

Direct or 
through 
impleme

nting 
agency 

1.  Contributio
n to Sahed 
Harji Ram 

Kaler 
Senior 

Secondary 
School, 

Badalwas, 
SIkar 

Development 
and Ensure 
Safety and 
Security of 
Students & 
Teachers  

Sikar  One 
Month 

72,178/- 72,178/- 72,178/- Direct 

2.  Sewa 
Bharti 
Samiti 

Providing 
Education and 

Hostel 
Facilities to 
the Children 
belonging to 
economically 

backward 
classes 

Sikar One 
Month 

1,00,000/- 1,00,000/- 1,00,000/- Through 
Impleme
ntation 
agency 

3.  Ek 
Khwahish 
Education 

Foundation 

To connect 
Poor Children 

with 
Education 
through 

Adarsh Maa Ki 
Mamta 

Pathshala 

Sikar One 
Month 

1,00,000/- 1,00,000/- 1,00,000/- Through 
Impleme
ntation 
agency 

 Total    2,72,178/- 2,72,178/- 2,72,178/-  
 

(a)(ii) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 
year:NIL 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 



(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c):Rs.2,72,178/- 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)* 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to section 135(5). 

 Amount. Date of 
transfer 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

6,17,000/- 3,44,822 29-04-2024 - Nil  - 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per section 135(5) 

6,17,000/- 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (including 
set off for previous year) 

2,72,178/- 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any 

NIL 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

NIL 

  
7.  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL 

 
8. Whether and capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NO 
 

9.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 

  
 For and on behalf of the Board 
 FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
   
                                          Sd/-                               Sd/- 
   
      SHARWAN KUMAR KALER SUBHASH MEEL 
PLACE: SIKAR                  (MANAGING DIRECTOR)              (INDENDENT DIRECTOR) 
DATE: 20-05-2024 DIN-01050715 DIN-08032024 
   
 



   
 
 
 
 
 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 
To the Members of  REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED, SIKAR  
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of  REX PIPES AND 
CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED    (“the Company”), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, its profit/loss and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Information other than the standalone financial statements and auditors’ 
report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



 

 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for 
the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 
 
 



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 
  
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
 
 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 
 
 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 

to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with 
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act and 
rules made thereunder.  

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 

on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
‘Annexure B’.  

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under 
section 197(16), In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in 
excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) 
which are required to be commented upon by us.  

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would 
impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 



iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and 
 
(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material mis-statement. 
 

v. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the 
company and accordingly none of the compliance required to be 
compiled as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company 
has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did 
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with.  

 
 

 
   For Happy Kedawat and Company 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN: 030525C 
    
    
   Sd/- 

   CA Happy Kedawat 

Date: 20-05-2024   Proprietor 

UDIN: 24401746BKGPWM9137   Membership No. 401746 

Place:- Sikar



 
 

    Annexure ‘A’ 

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements”. 

 

We report that: 

(i) (a)   (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment; 

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, 
Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at 
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of 
all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the 
name of the company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company 
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no 
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii) (a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our 
opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage 
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No 
discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory 
were noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as 
compared to book records.  

 



 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company 
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, 
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security 
of current assets during any point of time of the year. The 
quarterly/monthly returns or statements filed by the company with such 
banks or financial institutions are not in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company in respect of following: 

 
Statement Showing Difference between Current Assets as per 
Statement submitted to Bank and as per Audited Books of Account 
           (Rs.in Lakhs) 
Date As Per Statement 

Submitted to 
Bank 

As Per Books 
of Accounts 

Difference 

30th June,2023 3090.50 3647.76 (557.26) 
31st July, 2023 3293.29 3543.71 (250.42) 
31st August, 2023 3607.60 3546.59 61.01 
28th September,2023 3980.24 3960.10 20.14 
31st October,2023 4072.24 4556.13 (483.89) 
30th November,2023 4118.38 4536.79 (418.41) 
31st December,2023 4113.16 4341.35 (228.19) 
31st January,2024 4110.96 4424.54 (313.58) 
29th February,2024 4028.48 4260.70 (232.22) 
31st March,2024 3785.06 3780.35 4.71 

 

(iii)  

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, during the year 
the company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans, or not stood guarantee, or not provided security to other entities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us  and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the investments 
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions 
of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and 
guarantees provided are not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s 
interest. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of 
loans and advance in the nature of loan given, in our opinion the 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
the repayments or receipts have been regular.  

 



 

 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no 
overdue amounts for more than 90 days in respect of the loans granted to 
the parties 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no loan or 
advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the 
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.  

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has 
not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, 
and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
have been complied with except non charging of interest on the loan. 

 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed 
to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vi) As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance 
of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company is 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanation given to us there were no 
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2024 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, there is no 
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute. 



 

 

 

 

 

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis     
of our examination of the records of the company, the Company has not 
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
as income during the year. 

 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company has 
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company has 
not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, the Company has utilized the money obtained by way of 
term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained,  

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that 
no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term 
purposes by the company. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not raised loans during the year on 
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 

 

(x) (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by 
the management, moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year were applied for 
the purposes for which those are raised. 

 

 



 

 

 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has utilized funds raised by way of preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 
convertible) for the purposes for which they were raised. 

 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report 
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, no whistle-blower complaints had been received by the 
company  

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) 
and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required by the 
applicable accounting standards; 

 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, the company has an internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business; 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till 
date for the period under audit.  

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company 

 

 



 

 

(xvi) (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not 
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of 
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. , 

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, 
the Group does not have not more than one CIC as part of the Group. 

 

(xvii) Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the 
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that 
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the company as and when they fall due. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(xx)  

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in respect of 
other than ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent 
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a 
period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with 
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in respect of 
ongoing project the company has transferred unspent amount to a 
Special Account, within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial 
year in compliance with Sec.135(6) of the said Act. 

(xxi) There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective 
auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the 
companies included in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
 
 

 
   For Happy Kedawat and Company 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN: 030525C 
    
    
   Sd/- 

   CA Happy Kedawat 
Date: 20-05-2024   Proprietor 
UDIN: 24401746BKGPWM9137   Membership No. 401746 

Place:- Sikar



 
 

 

        Annexure ‘B’ 

 
 

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone 
Financial Statements 

 
 
  
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of REX 
PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED    (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 



 
 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 
   
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that  
 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and  

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
 
   For Happy Kedawat and Company 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN: 030525C 
    
    
   Sd/- 

   CA Happy Kedawat 
Date: 20-05-2024   Proprietor 
UDIN: 24401746BKGPWM9137   Membership No. 401746 
 

Place:- Sikar



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
No. 31.03.2024  31.03.2023

I. EQUITY AND LIABILIITIES
(1) Shareholder's Fund

(a) Share Capital 1 945.00                               860.00                               
(b) Other Equity 2 2,193.55                           1,435.63                           

-                                     
(2) Share Application Money Pending allotment -                                     -                                     

(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 3 143.00                               315.96                               
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 1.54                                   10.39                                 
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 5.85                                   5.65                                   
(d) Long Term Provisions -                                     -                                     

(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 5 2,672.52                           1,733.33                           
(b) Trade Payables 6
     (i) Due to MSME 1.54                                   26.41                                 
     (ii) Due to Other 501.19                               936.65                               
(c) Other Current Liabilities 7 310.50                               291.28                               
(d) Short-Term Provisions 8 209.05                               169.90                               

Total Equity and Liabilities 6,983.74                           5,785.20                           

II ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipments
(i) Tangible Assets 9[A] 1,160.68                           1,230.66                           
(ii) Intangible Assets 9[B] 0.16                                   0.19                                   
(iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 9[C] -                                     -                                     
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 9[D] -                                     -                                     
(b) Non-Current Investments 10 618.62                               -                                     
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) -                                     -                                     
(d) Long Term Loans and Advances -                                     -                                     
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 11 52.36                                 59.20                                 

(2) Current Asseets
(a) Current Investments -                                     -                                     
(b) Inventories 12 2,371.75                           1,196.83                           
(c) Trade Receivables 13 1,920.24                           2,449.47                           
(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 335.78                               298.38                               
(e) Short-Term Loans & Advances 15 524.15                               550.47                               
(f) Other Current Assets -                                     -                                     

Total Assets 6,983.74                           5,785.20                           
Significant Accounting Policies, Notes to Accounts, 25
Other General Notes and Disclosures

Notes 1 to 25  forming integral part of Accounts. As per our report of even date

FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED For M/s Happy Kedawat and Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 030525C
                    Sd/-                                         Sd/-

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)                (RAJENDRA KALER)
Managing Director                              Whole Time Director   Sd/-
DIN:- 01050715                                        DIN:-08032024 (Happy Kedawat)

Proprietor
Membership No. 401746

(K.L. SHARMA)                                      (MONIKA BOHARA)
Chief Finance Officer                           Company Secretary
                                                                  Mem. No. : 60048
Place : Sikar
Date : 20-05-2024
UDIN : 24401746BKGPWM9137

                 Sd/-                                                               Sd/-

AS ON 31st March, 2024

Particulars

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

Note: 1 Share Capital (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

101,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,010.00                        1,000.00                       
(Previous Year - 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

1,010.00                        1,000.00                       

2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
94,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 945.00                            860.00                          
(Previous year - 86,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Shares allotted during the last 5 years :
Issue of 24,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully paid-up during the FY 2021-22

Preferential Issue of 8,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully paid-up during the FY 2023-24
Total 945.00                           860.00                          

3

4
Details of aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up  pursuant to 
contract(s) without payment being received in cash.

-                                  -                                 

1(i)
Name of Share Holder

As at As at

Term & Rights Attached to Equity Shares : The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of
Rs.10/- Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and dividend as and when declared by the Company.

Details of Shares in the Company held by each Share Holder holding more than 5 per- cent shares.
S.No. No.of Shares with % of Holding

Particulars

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

Standalone Notes  1 to 25 Forming integral part of the Accounts as at 31st March, 2024

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Shri Sharwan Kumar Kaler 1864500 1850500

19.73% 21.52%
(b) Smt. Sohani Devi 842500 842500

8.92% 9.80%
(c) M/s Sharwan Kumar Kaler & Sons HUF 725000 725000

7.67% 8.43%
(d) Shri Bajrang Lal Kaler 689250 689250

7.29% 8.01%
(e) Shri Raghunath Singh Kaler 516250 516250

5.46% 6.00%
(f) Smt. Dhanni Devi Kaler 470500 470500

4.98% 5.47%

Reconciliation of Shares No. of shares No. of shares
Authorized Share Capital 
Opening Balance 10,000,000                          10,000,000                         
Add : Additions 100,000                                -                                            
Less : Deductions -                                             -                                            
Closing Balance (1+2-3) 10,100,000                          10,000,000                         

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital 
Opening Balance 8,600,000                             8,600,000                           
Add : Additions 850,000                                -                                            
Less : Deductions -                                             -                                            
Closing Balance (1+2-3) 9,450,000                             8,600,000                           

1(ii)
S.No.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g) Smt. Dhanni Devi Kaler                                                         470500                                   4.98                                              (0.49)  
(h)
(i)

Shri Raghunath Singh Kaler                                                 516250                                   5.46                                              (0.54)

Shri Jitendra Kumar Kaler                                                       14000                                   0.15                                                0.15                  
Smt. Sumal Gadwal                                                                   28000                                   0.30                                                0.30

Details of Shareholding of promoters at the end of the year
Name of Promoters                                                      No. of Shares                 % of Total Shares               % Change during the year
Shri Sharwan Kumar Kaler                                                 1864500                                 19.73                                             (1.79)
Smt. Sohani Devi                                                                     842500                                   8.92                                              (0.88)
M/s Sharwan Kumar Kaler & Sons HUF                           725000                                   7.67                                              (0.76)
Shri Bajrang Lal Kaler                                                             689250                                   7.29                                              (0.72)  

Smt. Kohil Devi                                                                         162500                                   1.72                                              (0.17)     



Note: 2 Other Equity
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Reserves and Surplus

Balance Brought Forward from previous year 1,087.17                        725.52                          
Add : Earnings after tax during the period 473.17                            361.65                          

1,560.34                        1,087.17                       

2 Share Premium 633.21                            348.46                          

Total 2,193.55                        1,435.63                       

Note: 3 Long Term Borrowings (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Term Loans

(a) From Banks (Secured) (See Descriptive Note 3.1) 141.86                            308.10                          
(Term loan is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the -                                  -                                 
Company and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the -                                  -                                 
of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors) -                                  -                                 

2 Axis Bank Car Loan(See Descriptive Note 3.1) 1.14                                7.87                               

Total 143.00                            315.96                          

Note: 3.1 Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars As at As at
No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Axis Bank (Term Loan a/c) 289.88                            586.30                          
Less: Amount taken to Current Maturities: (148.02)                          (278.20)                         

2 Axis Bank (Car Loan) 7.87                                14.11                             
Less: Amount taken to Current Maturities: (6.72)                               (6.25)                             

Total 143.00                            315.96                          

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars

Total 143.00                            315.96                          

Note:-

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Note: 4 Other Long Term Liabilities (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Security Deposits from Dealers 5.85                                5.65                               

Total 5.85                                5.65                               

Term Loan Taken from Axis Bank Rs. 2.48 crore is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the Company and 
hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors 
and repayable in 31 monthly Instalments starting from Feb.22.
Term Loan Taken from Axis Bank Rs. 4.03 crore is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the Company and 
hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors 
and repayable in 30 monthly Instalments starting from Feb.22.
Term Loan Taken from Axis Bank Rs. 1.64 crore is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the Company and 
hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors 
and repayable in 36 monthly Instalments starting from Feb.24.



Note: 5 Short Term Borrowings (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Axis Bank Account 2,517.78                        1,448.89                       
(C.C. / OD Limits are secured by hypothecation of Raw Material, Goods in Process
and Finished Goods etc. and by personal guarantees of the Directors)

2  Loans or Advance Granted to Promoters,Directors, KMPs and the related parties:
Types of Borrower           % to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans

 - Promoter                                                            - -                                  -                                 
 - Directors                                                            - -                                  -                                 
 - KMPs                                                                  -      -                                  -                                 
 - Related Parties                                                - -                                  -                                 

3 Current Maturities of Term Loan:
(a) From Banks (Secured) (See descriptive note 3.1) 154.74                            284.45                          

Total 2,672.52                        1,733.33                       

Note: 6 Trade Payables (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 1.54                                26.41                             
2 Due to Others 501.19                            936.65                          

Total 502.73                            963.06                          

Trade Payables ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2024  (Outstanding from the due date of Payament)

Particulars                                     Upto 1 year               1-2 year                   2-3 year                 >3 year                     Total 
- MSME                                                    1.54                              -                               -                              -                           1.54

- Others                                                    488.11                      1.55                              -                              -                        489.66

- Disputed Dues-MSME                             -                                  -                                -                              -                               -

- Disputed Dues- Others                            -                              -                               -                              -                               11.53

Note: 7 Other Current Liabilities (Amount in Lakhs)Note: 7 Other Current Liabilities
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Creditors for Expenses 58.84                              44.48                             
2 Duties & Taxes 0.42                                105.07                          
3 Others (PF & ESIC) 1.69                                1.70                               
4 Advance From Customers 249.55                            140.04                          

Total 310.50                            291.28                          

Note: 8 Short Term Provisions
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Provision for Income Tax

Opening Balance 149.42                            75.25                             
Add: Provision for Current Year 196.39                            149.42                          

345.81                            224.67                          
Less: Previous year's Provision w/o 149.42                            75.25                             

196.39                            149.42                          
2 Provision for Expenses 10.69                              16.88                             
3 Auditors' Remuneration Payable 1.98                                3.60                               

Closing Balance 209.05                            169.90                          

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars



NOTE- 09

STANDALONE PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AS PER COMPANIES ACT (Amount in Lakhs)

As at 01.04.2023
Additions

Deductions/Ad
justments As at 31-03-2024  As at 01.04.2023 

For the year
Deductions/Ad

justments As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024 As at 31.03.2023

TANGIBLE ASSETS
OWN ASSETS:
1) Office Equipment
Air Conditioner 1.81 0.55 0.00 2.35 1.08 0.22 0.00 1.30 1.05 0.73
Telephone Instruments 1.17 0.00 0.00 1.17 1.03 0.03 0.00 1.05 0.12 0.15
Computer 5.43 0.58 0.00 6.01 4.74 0.39 0.00 5.14 0.88 0.69
Laptop 1.47 0.00 0.00 1.47 0.58 0.57 0.00 1.15 0.32 0.89
Monitor LED 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00
Water Tank 1000 LTR 0.12 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.10 0.02 0.00 0.11 0.01 0.03
FAN 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.17 0.09 0.00 0.25 0.05 0.13
2) Motor Vehicle 
Motor Cycle 1.90 0.00 0.00 1.90 1.81 0.00 0.00 1.81 0.09 0.09
TVS Jupiter-BSVI Titanium Grey 0.64 0.00 0.00 0.64 0.35 0.07 0.00 0.43 0.21 0.29
Car 69.68 0.00 0.00 69.68 37.73 9.86 0.00 47.60 22.09 31.95
Pickup 6.46 0.00 0.00 6.46 6.14 0.00 0.00 6.14 0.32 0.32
Passenger Bus 17.26 0.00 17.26 0.00 8.95 0.00 8.95 0.00 0.00 8.32
Truck 74.34 0.00 0.00 74.34 26.70 14.97 0.00 41.67 32.67 47.64
Mahindra XUV 7OO 23.51 0.00 0 23.51 6.11 5.46 0 11.58 11.93 17.39
3) Mobile 3.91 0.57 0.00 4.48 2.03 0.35 0.00 2.37 2.11 1.89

4) Plant & Machinery 1258.36 116.31 0.00 1374.67 744.69 108.08 0.00 852.77 521.90 513.67

5) Furniture & fixture 32.26 1.12 0.00 33.38 22.05 2.71 0.00 24.76 8.62 10.22

6) Building 768.43 0.00 0.00 768.43 368.52 37.96 0.00 406.48 361.95 399.92

7) Land 196.36 0.00 0.00 196.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 196.36 196.36

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
1) Trademark 2.31 0.00 0.00 2.31 2.12 0.03 0.00 2.14 0.16 0.19

TOTAL 2465.82 119.12 17.26 2567.68 1234.98 180.81 8.95 1406.83 1160.84 1230.85
Previous year

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
PARTICULARS



Note: 10 Non-Current Investments 
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares (at Cost)

Swastik Infracity Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) 599.00                            -                                 
(59,90,000 Fully Paidup Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) -                                  

-                                  
2 Investment in Quoted Equity Shares (at Cost) -                                  

Latteys Industries Limited 19.62                              -                                 
(44000 Fully paidup Equity Shares)
Total 618.62                            -                                 

Note: 11 Other Non-Current Assets
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Security Deposits 52.36                              59.20                             

Total 52.36                              59.20                             

Note: 12 INVENTORIES (Taken as valued and certified by the Management)
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
INVENTORIES (Cost or NRV Whichever is Lower)

1 Raw Material 1,015.18                        588.68                          
2 Stock In Trade 420.56                            331.59                          
3 Finished Goods:

Finished Goods 787.59                            276.57                          
Work in process 148.42                            -                                 

Total 2,371.75                        1,196.83                       

Note: 13 Trade Receivables
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Secured, Considered Good -                                  -                                 
2 Unsecured, Considered Good 1,920.24                        2,449.47                       
3 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk -                                  -                                 

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

3 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk -                                  -                                 
4 Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                                  -                                 

Total 1,920.24                        2,449.47                       

Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2024  (Outstanding from the due date of Payament)

Note: 14 Cash and Cash Equivalents
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Balances with Banks

In Current Account 302.27                            148.43                          
In Fixed Deposit Accounts(Under lien) 17.14                              141.35                          

319.41                            289.79                          
2 Cash in hand (As certified by management) 16.38                              8.59                               

Total 335.78                            298.38                          

Note: 15 Short Term Loans and Advances
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Loans & Advances to others

(Advance Recoverable in cash/in kind or for value
to be recovered, considered good)
Advance Income Tax (Asstt. Year 2011-12) 4.38                                4.38                               
Income Tax demand appealed (Asstt. Year 2012-13) 45.80                              45.80                             
Advance Income Tax 160.00                            95.58                             
TDS Receivable 19.83                              13.51                             
Duties & Taxes 10.99                              -                                 
Advance to Staff 12.37                              8.61                               
Advance to Creditors 58.41                              108.08                          
Advance to Creditors for Capital Goods 200.00                            265.50                          
Prepaid Expenses 9.84                                6.51                               
Sundry Advances 2.52                                2.52                               
Total 524.15                            550.47                          

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Particulars

- Undisputed Receivables-Considered good               1670.83                   5.00                       -                     -                     -               1675.83

- Undisputed Receivables-Considered doubtful                -                         -                            -                    -                     -                   -

- Disputed Receivables-Considered good                        -                         -                            -                    -                244.41             244.41

- Disputed Receivables-Considered doubtful                   -                         -                            -                    -                     -                   -

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars                                                      <6months       6months-1 year       1-2 year        2-3year        >3 year            Total  



Contact No. : 01572-245009

(Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Note 

No.

I Income from Operations 16 12,861.19                       11,764.44                           
II Other Income 17 38.03                              54.47                                  
III Total Income (I+II) 12,899.22                       11,818.91                           

IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 18 9,120.35                         8,129.91                             
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 2,145.21                         1,926.34                             
Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade 19 (600.00)                           107.79                                
Employee Benefit Expenses 20 252.57                            214.44                                
Finance Costs 21 279.48                            226.32                                
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 22 180.81                            189.54                                
Other Expenses (Manufacturing, Administrative, Selling & 
Distribution Expenses) 23 859.90                            521.67                                
Total Expenses (IV) 12,238.32                       11,316.01                           

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 660.90                            502.90                                
(III-IV)

VI Exceptional Items -                                  -                                       
VII Prior Period Expenses 0.18                                0.26                                     
VIII Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V-VI-VII) 660.72                            502.65                                
VIX Extraordinary Items -                                  -                                       
X Profit before Tax (VIII-VIX) 660.72                            502.65                                
XI Tax Expenses

(1) Current Tax 24 196.39                            149.42                                
(2) Tax Expense relating to Prior Years -                                  0.75                                     
(3) Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (8.85)                               (9.18)                                   

XII Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (X-XI) 473.17                            361.65                                
XIII Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations -                                  -                                       
XIV Tax Expense of discontinuing operations -                                  -                                       
XV Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations (XIII-XIV) -                                  -                                       
XVI Profit/(Loss) for the year (XII+XV) 473.17                            361.65                                
XVII Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic (Previous year re-stated) 5.01                                4.21                                     
(2) Diluted (Previous year re-stated) 5.01                                4.21                                     
Significant Accounting Policies, Notes to Accounts, 
Other General Notes and Disclosures

Notes 1 to 25  forming integral part of Accounts. As per our report of even date
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED For M/s Happy Kedawat and Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 030525C

                        Sd/-                                         Sd/-
(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)                (RAJENDRA KALER)
Managing Director                              Whole Time Director   Sd/-
DIN:- 01050715                                        DIN:-08032024 (Happy Kedawat)

Proprietor

Membership No. 401746
(K.L. SHARMA)                                   (MONIKA BOHARA)
Chief Finance Officer                        Company Secretary
                                                              Mem. No. : 60048
Place : Sikar
Date : 20-05-2024
UDIN : 24401746BKGPWM9137

                 Sd/-                                                              Sd/-

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Email ID : kepls@live.com

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN
CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

For the year ended 
31.03.2024  

For the year ended 
31.03.2023         



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

Note: 16 Income from Operations (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Sale of Products 12,859.68                  11,761.42                  
2 Sale of Services -                              -                             
3 Other Operating Income 1.51                            3.03                           

Total 12,861.19                  11,764.44                  

Note: 17 Other Income (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Interest Received 16.81                          14.93                         
2 Exchange Rate Difference 0.74-                            15.48                         
3 Profit & Loss on sale of Fixed Assets -                              -                             
4 Govt. Subsidy 15.00                          23.88                         
5 Profit / Loss on Sales of Shares -                              0.17                           
6 Other Income 6.96                            -                             

Total 38.03                          54.47                         

Note: 18 Cost of Material Consumed (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Opening Stock 588.68                       773.67                       
2 Add: Purchases 9,695.27                    7,944.92                    

10,283.94                  8,718.58                    
3 Less: Closing Stock 1,163.60                    588.68                       

Balance 9,120.35                    8,129.91                    

Note: 19 Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
(Amount in Lakhs)

For the For the 
year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Opening Stock 608.16                       715.95                       
2 Less: Closing Stock 1,208.16                    608.16                       

Balance (600.00)                      107.79                       

S.No. Particulars

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

Standalone Notes 1 to 25 forming intergral part of Accounts as at 31st March, 2024

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars



Note: 20 Employee Benefit Expenses (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Salaries & Wages 198.03                       173.42                       
2 Provident Fund Contribution 9.51                            8.92                           
3 ESIC Contribution 2.26                            2.19                           
4 Remuneration to Directors 38.64                          27.60                         
5 Staff Welfare Expenses 4.12                            2.32                           

Total 252.57                       214.44                       

Note: 21 Finance Costs (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Interest to Bank 257.54                       204.94                       
2 Other Interest 10.78                          11.56                         
3 Bank Charges 11.17                          9.82                           

Total 279.48                       226.32                       

Note: 22 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Depreciation and Amortization 180.81                       189.54                       
Total 180.81                       189.54                       

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars



Note: 23 Other Expenses (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(A) Direct Expenses
1 Electricity & Water Expenses 218.48                       146.90                       
2 Labour Charges 0.39                            1.35                           
3 Building Maintenance Expenses 8.46                            3.43                           
4 Fuel Expenses 4.55                            8.39                           
5 Job Charges 34.20                          14.25                         
6 Testing & Crafting Expenses 23.05                          0.78                           
7 Bus Fabrication Works 253.74                       108.95                       
8 Carriage & Cartrage 94.83                          95.32                         

Total (A) 637.70                       379.37                       

(B) Administrative Expenses
1 News Papers & Periodicals 0.09                            0.08                           
2 Office & General Expenses 28.36                          15.83                         
3 Postage, Printing & Stationery 0.48                            0.47                           
4 Legal & Professional Fees 21.30                          9.67                           
5 Rent 22.20                          11.40                         
6 Repairing & Maintenance Charges 42.11                          22.73                         
7 Insurance Charges 5.12                            2.71                           
8 Auditor's Remuneration 3.96                            3.60                           
9 Membership & Subscription Charges 0.12                            0.07                           

10 Telephone Expenses 0.69                            0.62                           
11 Software AMC Charges 3.03                            1.01                           
12 Sundry Balances W/Off 0.03                            2.69                           
13 Travelling Expenses 17.47                          6.36                           
14 Donations 0.82                            0.11                           
15 RIICO Land development charges -                              4.66                           
16 Vat/CST Demand -                              22.52                         
17 Loss by Cash Theft -                              2.50                           
19 Penalty/Late Fees Charges 5.24                            -                             
20 CSR Activity Expenses 2.73                            -                             
21 Security Charges 4.31                            -                             

Total (B) 158.06                       107.04                       

(C) Selling & Distrubution Expenses
1 Cash Discount / Special Discount 1.53                            1.93                           
2 Advertisement 5.04                            4.01                           
3 Vehicle Runing & Maintenance Expenses 29.46                          27.21                         
4 Packing, Forwarding & Weighing Charges 1.48                            1.47                           
5 Sales Promotion Expenses 15.64                          0.63                           
6 Commission & Brokerage Exp. 11.00                          -                             

Total (C) 64.14                          35.26                         

Total (A+B+C) 859.90                       521.67                       

Note: 24 Current Tax (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Provision For Taxation 196.39                       149.42                       
Total 196.39                       149.42                       

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

(Amount in Lakhs)

 Details  Amount  Details  Amount 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax as per Profit and Loss Statement                    660.72                       502.65 

Adjusted For:

Depreciation & Amortisation                    180.81                       189.54 

Interest Paid                    279.48                       226.32 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets                            -                                 -   

Operating profits before Working Capital Changes                 1,121.00                          918.50 

Adjustment For:

Inventories                (1,174.92)                       292.79 

Trade Receivables                    529.23                      (693.42)

Short term loan & advances                      26.32                      (278.73)

Long term loan & advances                            -                                 -   

Other Non-Current Assets                        6.84                        (12.44)

Other current assets                            -                                 -   

Trade Payables                   (460.33)                       266.82 

Short term Borrowings                    939.18                         30.85 

Other Liabilities                      58.38                    (75.29)                       154.64                        (239.50)

Cash generated from Operations                 1,045.71                          679.00 

Income Tax                    196.39                          150.17 
Interest on Income Tax                           -                                   -   

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (A)                    849.32                          528.83 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Less : Purchase of Fixed Assets                    119.12                       214.68 

Transfer of Fixed Assets                        8.32                               -   

Purchase of Investments                    618.62                               -   

Less : Increase in Other Non- Current Assets                            -                                 -   
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B)                  (729.42)                        (214.68)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Borrowings & other Long- term Liabilities                   (172.76)                      (177.58)

Less : Interest Paid                   (279.48)                      (226.32)

Increase in Share Capital                      85.00                               -   

Increase in Other Reserves & Surplus                    284.75                               -   

Less : Decrease in Share Application Money                            -                                 -   

Subsidy Received                            -                                 -   
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (C)                    (82.49)                        (403.90)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)                      37.40                          (89.75)

Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the Period                    298.38                          388.13 
Cash & Cash equivalents at the close of the Period                    335.78                          298.38 

Note:

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared adopting the Indirect method as prescribed under para 18 of Accounting Standard-3

(AS-3) on " Cash Flow Statement."

Notes 1 to 25  forming integral part of Accounts. As per our report of even date
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED For M/s Happy Kedawat and Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 030525C

                                  Sd/-                                 Sd/-
(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)                (RAJENDRA KALER)
Managing Director                              Whole Time Director   Sd/-
DIN:- 01050715                                        DIN:-08032024 (Happy Kedawat)

Proprietor
Membership No. 401746

               Sd/-                                                  Sd/-
(K.L. SHARMA)                                      (MONIKA BOHARA)
Chief Finance Officer                           Company Secretary
                                                                  Mem. No. : 60048
Place : Sikar
Date : 20-05-2024
UDIN : 24401746BKGPWM9137

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

 For the year ended 31.03.2024    

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

PARTICULARS
 For the year ended 31.03.2023  



REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED, SIKAR 

“Notes forming part of standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024” 

25 :     SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Accounting Convention / Basis of Accounts Preparation 

 The standalone financial statements have been prepared under historical cost conventions in 

according with the generally accepted accounting principles and in compliance with the Accounting 

Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as the Companies (Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2006, and in accordance with the other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 All assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The 

standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are prepared as per Schedule III to 

the Companies Act 2013. 

 The company generally follows the mercantile system of accounting & recognizes income and 

expenditure on an accrual basis except those with significant uncertainties  

 Standalone Financial Statements are based on historic cost. Those cost are not adjusted to 

reflects the impact of the changing the value in the purchase power of money. 

 

B. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, the reported amounts of 

assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities as on the date of the standalone 

financial statements. 

 

C. Property, Plants & Equipments 

 Property, Plants & Equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

amortization. 

 Cost for the purpose of valuing Property, Plants & Equipments & capital work in progress 

comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for 

its intended use. 

 Pre-operative Expenditure and cost relating to borrowed funds attributable to the construction 

or acquisition up to the date asset is ready for use is included under Capital Work-in-Progress and the 

same is allocated to the respective fixed assets on its completion for satisfactory commercial 

commencement.  

 

 

 



D. Depreciation and Amortization 

 

  Depreciation on tangible asset is provided on the Written down Value method over the useful 

life of the asset prescribed as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets 

purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged.  

 
E. Investment 

 Investments that are intended to be held for more than a year from the date of acquisition are 

classified as long-term investments and are stated at its cost of acquisition. Diminution, if any, other 

than temporary, in the value of such investments is provided. 

 Investments other than long-term investments, being current investments, are valued at the 

lower of cost and fair value, determined on an individual basis, including held by the Subsidiaries for 

long-term purposes is provided. Diminution in the value of other investments is provided. 

 

F. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  

- Sale of Goods :-  

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods are transferred to the customer and is stated net of sales tax and sales returns.  Export sales 

are stated at FOB value.  

- Service, Maintenance Charges & installation :- 

Revenue from these activities is booked, based on agreements/arrangements with concerned parties.  

-Interest :- 

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

rate applicable. 

-Insurance Claims :-  

Insurance claims are accounted for when settled/received. Brokerage & Charges are recognized on 

completed settlement basis and banks interest on accrual basis.  

 

G. Taxes on Income 

Provision for Current Tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the 

provision of The Income Tax Act 1961. Deferred Tax resulting from "timing difference"& "rate 

difference" between book Profit and taxable profit is accounted for using the tax rate and laws that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is 

recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the assets will 

be realized in future. 



 

H. Valuation of Stock 

Stock is valued at lower of cost or realizable value consistent with AS-2 issued by ICAI. 

I. Foreign Currency Transaction 

 All monetary assets & liability in foreign currencies are translated in Indian rupee at exchange 

rates prevailing at the balance sheet date as notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of 

India (FEDAI). 

 All non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 Items of income and expenditure relating to foreign exchange transaction are recorded at 

exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting at rates 

different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous 

financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.  

J. Accounting of CENVAT/VAT benefits 

 CENVAT/VAT credit availed under the relevant provisions in respect of Raw materials, Packing 

materials, capital goods, etc. is reduced from the relevant cost of purchase 

K. Retirement Benefits 

 Defined contribution plan: The Company’s superannuation scheme and state governed 

provident fund scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the 

schemes is recognized during the period in which the employees renders the related service. 

 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity: In accordance with applicable Indian Laws, the Company 

provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“Gratuity Plan”) covering all employees. The 

Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of 

employment, an amount based on the respective employees last drawn salary and the years of 

employment with the Company. Liability with regard to Gratuity Plan is accrued based on actuarial 

valuation at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent Actuary. Actuarial gain or loss is 

recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss as Income or Expense. 

 Compensated Absences: As per policy of the Company, it allows for the encashment of 

absence or absence with pay to its employees. The employees are entitled to accumulate such 

absences subject to certain limits, for the future encashment or absence. The Company records an 

obligation for Compensated absences in the year in which the employees renders the services that 

increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as 

the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 

accumulated at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent Actuarial valuation. 



L. Borrowing Costs 

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets are 

capitalized, net of income / income earned on temporary investments from such borrowings. Other 

borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as expense in the year in which the 

same are incurred. 

 Redemption Premium payable on borrowings is included as part of borrowing costs on a 

periodic cost basis. 

M. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets 

 Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial 

degree of estimation, if the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, a probable 

outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be 

reliably estimated. 

 Reimbursement expected in respect of the expenditure required to settle a provision is 

recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received. 

 Contingent liability is stated in the case of a present obligation arising from a past event, when 

it is not Probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, a possible 

obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 

 Contingent assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed. 

 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 

date. 

N. Cash Flow Statement 

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting 

Standard - 3 issued under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006. 

For and on behalf of the Board                    As per our audit report of even date   

For Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Limited                   For Happy Kedawat and Company 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 030525C 

 

           Sd/-                                          Sd/-                                                                                       Sd/- 

Sharwan Kumar Kaler                Rajendra Kaler                        CA Happy Kedawat 

Managing Director  Whole Time Director                          Proprietor 

DIN 01050715       DIN 08032024        M. No. 401746 

 
                                                  Sd/-                                   Sd/-  
Date:  20-05-2024            K L Sharma                         Monika Bohara 

Place: Sikar   Chief Finance Officer            Company Secretary 

UDIN:-  24401746BKGPWM9137                             M No. 60048 



 
 
  

OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 
 

   
I 

 
Additional information pursuant to provision Part II of Schedule III of the Companies 
Act 2013. 

 i) Expenditure incurred on employees who are in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate 
at the rate of not less than Rs 6000000 P.A. or Rs 500000/- P.M. if employed part of the 
year Rs Nil (Previous Year Rs Nil) 
                                                                                                                             (Amount in Lakhs) 

  
 

 
 ii) Director's Remuneration :- 

Particulars  2023-2024   2022-2023 
Salary   38.64  27.60 
Commission  Nil  Nil 
     

II 

 

As required under the accounting standard of Related Party Disclosure (AS 18) issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, The disclosure of  Related Party name & 
their  transactions are as under:- 
                               Enclosed “Annexure A1& A2”   
 

 
III  Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 
 i) Value of Imported Components calculated on C.I.F. 

basis    47.31       342.63  
     
 ii) Expenditure in Foreign Currency :-   
       Nil        Nil 
     
 iii) Earning in Foreign Currency Nil        Nil 
     
 iv) Value of exports on F.O.B basis Nil        Nil  
     
 v) Remittance in foreign currencies on account of 

dividend to non-resident Share Holders Nil         Nil 
     
 vi) Capital Commitment Outstanding Nil        Nil 
   
IV  In the absence of confirmation from the parties and pending reconciliation, the debit and 

credit balances with regard to recoverable and payables have been taken as reflected in 
the books of accounts of company at the period-end. In the opinion of the Directors, 
Loans & Advances and Current Assets, if realized in the ordinary course of business, 
have the value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 
 

 

 
 

V  As required under the accounting standard of statement of employees (AS 15) issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company has not provided liability 
towards gratuity, since, as informed to me by the management, payment of gratuity is 
not applicable to the Company. Encashment of leave accumulated while in service is at 
the option of the employee and accounted for, as and when claimed, and hence not 
provided for.  

  
  
  
 

 
 
VI 

  
As required under the accounting standard of Provisions, Contingent Liability & 
Contingent Asset (AS 29) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The 
detail as per below. 
 



 
 

VII  As required under the accounting standard of Taxes on Income (AS 22) issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company has provided for Deferred Tax 
Liability/Assets for timing difference : 

  

Particulars 

2023-2024 2022-2023 
 

 
Creation\ 
(Reversal) 

Creation\ 
(Reversal) 

 

 
(i) On Account of Timing /difference in 
Depreciation.   

DTA : 8.85 9.18 

DTL : Nil Nil 
 

 
(ii) on Account of Timing Difference in 
Disallowance U/s 43B of the Income Tax Act. 

DTA : Nil Nil 
DTL : Nil Nil 

 

 
(iii) On Account of Timing Difference of 
Amortization of Expenses  

DTA : Nil Nil 

DTL : Nil Nil 
  Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) Additional  (1.54) (10.39) 
     
VIII  Wherever original vouchers are not available, management vouchers duly certified have 

been accepted by me and in the absence of the same, book entries as certified by the 
management, have been accepted by us. 

  
  
   
IX 
 
 
 
  

In the opinion of the management, current asset, loans and advances are expected to 
realize at least  the amount  at which they are stated, if realized in the ordinary course of 
business and provision for all known liabilities have been adequately made in the 
accounts. 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
XI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Advance to others includes advances to concerns in which directors are interest: 

Name  Current year closing 
balance  (Rs.in Lakhs) 

Previous year closing 
balance  (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 - - 

 
Calculation of Ratios: 
Particulars                                                        As at 31st 

March, 2024 
As at 31st 
March, 2023 

(a) Current Ratio                 1.39 1.42 
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio                1.23 1.52 
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio                 2.58 2.40 
(d) Return on Equity Ratio                0.15 0.16 
(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio                   6.33 7.86 
(f) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio                   5.90 5.62 
(g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio                  16.16 24.82 
(h) Net capital Turnover Ratio                   17.71 17.67 
(i) Net Profit Ratio                    3.67 3.06 
(j) Return on Capital Employed                    0.28 0.27 
(k) Return on Investment 0.00                0.00 



 
 

XII 

 

The Company has not received any Registration Certificate From Any Vendor as to 
whether it is Registered under the Sec 22 of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. 
 

XIII 

 

The Company is a small and medium sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General 
Instructions in respect of Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, the Company has complied with the Accounting Standards as applicable to 
a SMC. 
 

XIV 

 

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments:- 
  
Particulars  As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023 
Contingent Liabilities:-  
Claim not acknowledge as debt by the Company:- 
Bill Discounted & Outstanding:- 
Guarantee and Letter of Credit issued by the banker 
of the Company (including guarantee given by the 
company):- 
 
Capital Commitments:-  
Estimated amount of the contract to be executed on 
Capital Account:- 
 

 
 
 
 

5.00 Lakhs 
 
 
 

Nil 

 
 
 
 

431.96 Lakhs 
 
 
 

Nil 

 

XV 

 

Benami Property: - No any proceeding have been initiated or pending against the 
company for the holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 
 

XVI 

 

Wilful Defaulter:- The Company is not categorized as Wilful Defaulter by the any Bank 
or Financial Institution or Other Lenders. 
 

XVII 

 

Relationship with Struck off Companies:- The Company does not have any transactions 
with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956. 
 

XVIII 

 

The Company was earlier known as Kaler Electricals Private Limited, however its name 
was changed to Rex Pipes & Cables Industries Private Limited, vide fresh certificate of 
incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan, Jaipur dated 19th 
January, 2018. The Company was thereafter converted into a Public Limited Company 
vide fresh certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan, 
Jaipur dated 1st February, 2018 and since then is named as Rex Pipes & Cables 
Industries Limited. 
 

XIX 
 

The Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary. 
 

XX 

 

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic: In assessing the recoverability if loans, receivables & 
other advances, stocks, investments and other tangible assets, the company has 
considered internal & external sources of information, including industry reports upto 
the date of approval of these financial statements and based on the current indicators of 
future economic conditions, the company expects to recover the carrying amounts of 
these assets. The eventual outcome of the impact of the pandemic may though be 
different from what has been estimated as on date of approval of the accounts. 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
XXI 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
The company has prepared these financial statements as per format prescribed by 
Schedule-III to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the schedule') issued by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.  Previous year figures have been recast\restated to conform to the classification 
required by Schedule III & make then comparable with current Period. 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

As per our report of  
even date attached for 

 
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED FOR HAPPY KEDAWAT AND COMPANY 
 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
  
 

                  Sd/-                                                         Sd/-                                                  

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)         (RAJENDRA KALER) 

   Managing Director                            Whole Time Director              

   DIN: 01050715                                          DIN: 08032024 
  

 
          Sd/-                                                       Sd/- 
(K L SHARMA)                             (MONIKA BOHARA) 
Chief Finance Officer                        Company Secretary 
                                                               Mem. No. 60048 
 Place: Sikar  

  Dated: 20-05-2024 
UDIN:- 24401746BKGPWM9137 

 

                     Sd/- 

    (CA. HAPPY   KEDWAT) 

 
PROPRIETOR 

 
M.No.401746 

 
FRN-030525C 

 
 

  
  

 



S. No. Parties

List of Key Managerial Person

Key Management Personnel 
1 Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler Managing Director
2 Mr. Rajendra Kaler Whole Time Director
3 Smt. Sohani Devi Whole Time Director
4 Mr. K L Sharma Chief Financial Officer
5 Monika Bohara Company Secretary

Relatives of KMPS
1 Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler
2 Sunita Kumari

Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel exercises 
significant influence 

1 M/s J K Polymers
2 M/s Supreme Industries
3 M/s DLB Govindam Affordable Housing
4 M/s Dream Home Builders
5 M/s Rex Pumps Private Limited
6 M/s Desi Shopping Market Private Limited
7 M/s Swastik Infracity Private Limited
8 M/s Pagrik Ethiopia PLC

Formating Part of Notes on Accounts Annexure -"A1"

Name of Related Parties and Relationships



(Rs. in Lakhs) 
 2023-24 2022-23

 Transaction Value  Transaction Value 

Managerial Remuneration 20.16                         14.40                       
Rent 1.44                           1.44                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 2.43                           0.76                         
Loan Taken 190.02                       512.00                     
Loan Repaid 190.02                       512.00                     

Managerial Remuneration 13.44                         9.60                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 4.50                           6.32                         
Loan Taken 38.17                         53.38                       
Loan Repaid 38.17                         53.38                       

Managerial Remuneration 5.04                           3.60                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 6.68                           0.09                         
Loan Taken 88.35                         14.50                       
Loan Repaid 88.35                         14.50                       
Rent 7.32                           7.32                         

Mr. K L Sharma
Managerial Remuneration 5.66                           5.47                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 3.77                           -                           

Ms. Monika Bohara
Managerial Remuneration 2.59                           2.76                         
Loan Taken 33.10                         -                           
Loan Repaid 33.10                         -                           
Rent 2.64                           2.64                         

Sunita Kumari Salary 2.40                           2.40                         
Purchase 5.32                           1.90                         
Sales 4.23                           1.52                         
Loan Taken 2.20                           9.79                         
Loan Repaid 2.20                           9.79                         
Sales 1.02                           25.51                       
Loan Taken -                             1.11                         
Loan Repaid -                             1.11                         

M/s Dream Home Builders Sales 0.34                           0.05                         
M/s Rex Pumps Private Limited Sales -                             2.29                         

Purchase 3.44                           4.71                         
Loan Taken 2.29                           305.50                     
Loan Repaid 2.29                           305.50                     
Rent Income 0.47                           -                           

M/s Pagrik Ethiopia PLC Import of Goods -                             327.53                     
 M/s SwasƟk Infracity Private Limited (Subsidiary company) Investment in Shares 599.00                       -                           

M/s Desi Shopping Market Private Limited

M/s DLB Govindam Affordable Housing

Formatting Part of Notes on Accounts Annexure -"A2"

Name of Related Parties and Their Transaction 

Name of the Related Parties & Nature of Relationships Nature of Transaction

Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler

Mr. Rajendra Kaler

Mrs. Sohani Devi

Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler

M/s Supreme Industries



   
 
 
 
 
 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 
To the Members of  REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED, SIKAR  
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of  REX PIPES AND 
CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED    (“the Company”), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, its profit/loss and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditors’ 
report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



 

 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for 
the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
 



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 
  
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.  
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial 
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
 
 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 
 
 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 

to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act and 
rules made thereunder.  

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 

on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated financial statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
‘Annexure B’.  

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under 
section 197(16), In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in 
excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) 
which are required to be commented upon by us.  

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would 
impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 



iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s 
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and 
 
(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material mis-statement. 
 

v. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the 
company and accordingly none of the compliance required to be 
compiled as per section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company 
has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did 
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with.  

 
 

 
   For Happy Kedawat and Company 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN: 030525C 
    
    
   Sd/- 

   CA Happy Kedawat 

Date: 20-05-2024   Proprietor 

UDIN:24401746BKGPWN1063    Membership No. 401746 

Place:- Sikar



 
 

    Annexure ‘A’ 

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements”. 

 

We report that: 

(i) (a)   (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment; 

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, 
Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at 
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of 
all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee) disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements are held in the 
name of the company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company 
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no 
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii) (a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our 
opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage 
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No 
discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory 
were noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as 
compared to book records.  

 



 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company 
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, 
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security 
of current assets during any point of time of the year. The 
quarterly/monthly returns or statements filed by the company with such 
banks or financial institutions are not in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company in respect of following: 

 
Statement Showing Difference between Current Assets as per 
Statement submitted to Bank and as per Audited Books of Account 
           (Rs.in Lakhs) 
Date As Per Statement 

Submitted to 
Bank 

As Per Books 
of Accounts 

Difference 

30th June,2023 3090.50 3647.76 (557.26) 
31st July, 2023 3293.29 3543.71 (250.42) 
31st August, 2023 3607.60 3546.59 61.01 
28th September,2023 3980.24 3960.10 20.14 
31st October,2023 4072.24 4556.13 (483.89) 
30th November,2023 4118.38 4536.79 (418.41) 
31st December,2023 4113.16 4341.35 (228.19) 
31st January,2024 4110.96 4424.54 (313.58) 
29th February,2024 4028.48 4260.70 (232.22) 
31st March,2024 3785.06 3780.35 4.71 

 

(iii)  

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, during the year 
the company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans, or not stood guarantee, or not provided security to other entities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us  and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the investments 
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions 
of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and 
guarantees provided are not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s 
interest. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of 
loans and advance in the nature of loan given, in our opinion the 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
the repayments or receipts have been regular.  

 



 

 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no 
overdue amounts for more than 90 days in respect of the loans granted to 
the parties 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no loan or 
advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the 
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.  

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company has 
not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable 
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, 
and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
have been complied with except non charging of interest on the loan. 

 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed 
to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(vi) As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance 
of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company is 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanation given to us there were no 
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2024 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, there is no 
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute. 



 

 

 

 

 

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis     
of our examination of the records of the company, the Company has not 
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
as income during the year. 

 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company has 
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company has 
not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, the Company has utilized the money obtained by way of 
term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained,  

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an 
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that 
no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term 
purposes by the company. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by 
the management, the company has not raised loans during the year on 
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable. 

 

(x) (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by 
the management, moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year were applied for 
the purposes for which those are raised. 

 

 



 

 

 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has utilized funds raised by way of preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 
convertible) for the purposes for which they were raised. 

 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report 
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, no whistle-blower complaints had been received by the 
company  

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) 
and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements, as required by the 
applicable accounting standards; 

 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, the company has an internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business; 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till 
date for the period under audit.  

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company 

 

 



 

 

(xvi) (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not 
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of 
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. , 

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, 
the Group does not have not more than one CIC as part of the Group. 

 

(xvii) Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the 
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not 
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that 
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the company as and when they fall due. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(xx)  

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in respect of 
other than ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent 
amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a 
period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with 
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in respect of 
ongoing project the company has transferred unspent amount to a 
Special Account, within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial 
year in compliance with Sec.135(6) of the said Act. 

(xxi) There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective 
auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the 
companies included in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
 
 

 
   For Happy Kedawat and Company 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN: 030525C 
    
    
   Sd/- 

   CA Happy Kedawat 
Date: 20-05-2024   Proprietor 
UDIN: 24401746BKGPWN1063   Membership No. 401746 

Place:- Sikar



 
 

 

        Annexure ‘B’ 

 
 
Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated 

Financial Statements 
 

 
  
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of REX 
PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED    (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 



 
 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 
   
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that  
 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and  

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements. 

 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
 
   For Happy Kedawat and Company 
   Chartered Accountants 
   FRN: 030525C 
    
    
   Sd/- 

   CA Happy Kedawat 
Date: 20-05-2024   Proprietor 
UDIN: 24401746BKGPWN1063   Membership No. 401746 
 

Place:- Sikar



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
No. 31.03.2024  31.03.2023

I. EQUITY AND LIABILIITIES
(1) Shareholder's Fund

(a) Share Capital 1 945.00                               860.00                               
(b) Other Equity 2 2,195.35                           1,435.63                           

-                                     
(2) Share Application Money Pending allotment -                                     -                                     

(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 3 143.00                               315.96                               
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 1.54                                   10.39                                 
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 5.85                                   5.65                                   
(d) Long Term Provisions -                                     -                                     

(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 5 2,693.52                           1,733.33                           
(b) Trade Payables 6
     (i) Due to MSME 1.54                                   26.41                                 
     (ii) Due to Other 514.94                               936.65                               
(c) Other Current Liabilities 7 310.71                               291.28                               
(d) Short-Term Provisions 8 209.45                               169.90                               

Total Equity and Liabilities 7,020.90                           5,785.20                           

II ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipments
(i) Tangible Assets 9[A] 1,160.68                           1,230.66                           
(ii) Intangible Assets 9[B] 0.16                                   0.19                                   
(iii) Capital Work-in-Progress 9[C] -                                     -                                     
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 9[D] -                                     -                                     
(b) Non-Current Investments 10 19.62                                 -                                     
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) -                                     -                                     
(d) Long Term Loans and Advances -                                     -                                     
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 11 58.00                                 59.20                                 

(2) Current Asseets
(a) Current Investments -                                     -                                     
(b) Inventories 12 2,995.53                           1,196.83                           
(c) Trade Receivables 13 1,920.24                           2,449.47                           
(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 336.15                               298.38                               
(e) Short-Term Loans & Advances 15 530.51                               550.47                               
(f) Other Current Assets -                                     -                                     

Total Assets 7,020.90                           5,785.20                           
Significant Accounting Policies, Notes to Accounts, 25
Other General Notes and Disclosures

Notes 1 to 25  forming integral part of Accounts. As per our report of even date

FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED For M/s Happy Kedawat and Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 030525C
             sd/-                                              sd/-            

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)                (RAJENDRA KALER)
Managing Director                              Whole Time Director                          sd/-
DIN:- 01050715                                        DIN:-08032024 (Happy Kedawat)

Proprietor
Membership No. 401746

(K.L. SHARMA)                                      (MONIKA BOHARA)
Chief Finance Officer                           Company Secretary
                                                                  Mem. No. : 60048
Place : Sikar
Date : 20-05-2024
UDIN : 24401746BKGPWN1063

                              sd/-                                               sd/-

AS ON 31st March, 2024

Particulars

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

Note: 1 Share Capital (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

101,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,010.00                        1,000.00                       
(Previous Year - 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

1,010.00                        1,000.00                       

2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
94,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 945.00                            860.00                          
(Previous year - 86,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Shares allotted during the last 5 years :
Issue of 24,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully paid-up during the FY 2021-22

Preferential Issue of 8,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, Fully paid-up during the FY 2023-24
Total 945.00                           860.00                          

3

4
Details of aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up  pursuant to 
contract(s) without payment being received in cash.

-                                  -                                 

1(i)
Name of Share Holder

As at As at

Particulars

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

Consolidated Notes  1 to 25 Forming integral part of the Accounts as at 31st March, 2024

Term & Rights Attached to Equity Shares : The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of
Rs.10/- Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and dividend as and when declared by the Company.

Details of Shares in the Company held by each Share Holder holding more than 5 per- cent shares.
S.No. No.of Shares with % of Holding

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Shri Sharwan Kumar Kaler 1864500 1850500

19.73% 21.52%
(b) Smt. Sohani Devi 842500 842500

8.92% 9.80%
(c) M/s Sharwan Kumar Kaler & Sons HUF 725000 725000

7.67% 8.43%
(d) Shri Bajrang Lal Kaler 689250 689250

7.29% 8.01%
(e) Shri Raghunath Singh Kaler 516250 516250

5.46% 6.00%
(f) Smt. Dhanni Devi Kaler 470500 470500

4.98% 5.47%

Reconciliation of Shares No. of shares No. of shares
Authorized Share Capital 
Opening Balance 10,000,000                          10,000,000                         
Add : Additions 100,000                                -                                            
Less : Deductions -                                             -                                            
Closing Balance (1+2-3) 10,100,000                          10,000,000                         

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital 
Opening Balance 8,600,000                             8,600,000                           
Add : Additions 850,000                                -                                            
Less : Deductions -                                             -                                            
Closing Balance (1+2-3) 9,450,000                             8,600,000                           

1(ii)
S.No.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g) Smt. Dhanni Devi Kaler                                                         470500                                   4.98                                              (0.49)  
(h)
(i)

Shri Jitendra Kumar Kaler                                                       14000                                   0.15                                                0.15                  
Smt. Sumal Gadwal                                                                   28000                                   0.30                                                0.30

Details of Shareholding of promoters at the end of the year
Name of Promoters                                                      No. of Shares                 % of Total Shares               % Change during the year
Shri Sharwan Kumar Kaler                                                 1864500                                 19.73                                             (1.79)
Smt. Sohani Devi                                                                     842500                                   8.92                                              (0.88)
M/s Sharwan Kumar Kaler & Sons HUF                           725000                                   7.67                                              (0.76)

Shri Raghunath Singh Kaler                                                 516250                                   5.46                                              (0.54)
Shri Bajrang Lal Kaler                                                             689250                                   7.29                                              (0.72)  

Smt. Kohil Devi                                                                         162500                                   1.72                                              (0.17)     



Note: 2 Other Equity
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Reserves and Surplus

Balance Brought Forward from previous year 1,087.17                        725.52                          
Add : Earnings after tax during the period 474.54                            361.65                          

1,561.71                        1,087.17                       

2 Share Premium 633.21                            348.46                          

3 Minority Interest 0.43                                -                                 

Total 2,195.35                        1,435.63                       

Note: 3 Long Term Borrowings (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Term Loans

(a) From Banks (Secured) (See Descriptive Note 3.1) 141.86                            308.10                          
(Term loan is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the -                                  -                                 
Company and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the -                                  -                                 
of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors) -                                  -                                 

2 Axis Bank Car Loan(See Descriptive Note 3.1) 1.14                                7.87                               

Total 143.00                            315.96                          

Note: 3.1 Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. Particulars As at As at
No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Axis Bank (Term Loan a/c) 289.88                            586.30                          
Less: Amount taken to Current Maturities: (148.02)                          (278.20)                         

2 Axis Bank (Car Loan) 7.87                                14.11                             
Less: Amount taken to Current Maturities: (6.72)                               (6.25)                             

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars

Less: Amount taken to Current Maturities: (6.72)                               (6.25)                             

Total 143.00                            315.96                          

Note:-

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Note: 4 Other Long Term Liabilities (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Security Deposits from Dealers 5.85                                5.65                               

Total 5.85                                5.65                               

Term Loan Taken from Axis Bank Rs. 2.48 crore is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the Company and 
hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors 
and repayable in 31 monthly Instalments starting from Feb.22.
Term Loan Taken from Axis Bank Rs. 4.03 crore is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the Company and 
hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors 
and repayable in 30 monthly Instalments starting from Feb.22.
Term Loan Taken from Axis Bank Rs. 1.64 crore is secured by Mortgage of Land & Building owned by the Company and 
hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets of the Company.  It is also secured by personal guarantees of the Directors 
and repayable in 36 monthly Instalments starting from Feb.24.



Note: 5 Short Term Borrowings (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Axis Bank Account 2,517.78                        1,448.89                       
(C.C. / OD Limits are secured by hypothecation of Raw Material, Goods in Process
and Finished Goods etc. and by personal guarantees of the Directors)
(C.C. / OD Limits are secured by hypothecation of Raw Material, Goods in Process
and Finished Goods etc. and by personal guarantees of the Directors)

3  Loans or Advance Granted to Promoters,Directors, KMPs and the related parties:
Types of Borrower           % to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans

 - Promoter                                                            - -                                  -                                 
 - Directors                                                            - 21.00                              -                                 
 - KMPs                                                                  -      -                                  -                                 
 - Related Parties                                                - -                                  -                                 

4 Current Maturities of Term Loan:
(a) From Banks (Secured) (See descriptive note 3.1) 154.74                            284.45                          

Total 2,693.52                        1,733.33                       

Note: 6 Trade Payables (Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 1.54                                26.41                             
2 Due to Others 514.94                            936.65                          

Total 516.48                            963.06                          

Trade Payables ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2024  (Outstanding from the due date of Payament)

Particulars                                     Upto 1 year               1-2 year                   2-3 year                 >3 year                     Total 
- MSME                                                    1.54                              -                               -                              -                           1.54

- Others                                                    501.86                      1.55                              -                              -                        503.41

- Disputed Dues-MSME                             -                                  -                                -                              -                               -

- Disputed Dues- Others                            -                              -                               -                              -                               11.53

Note: 7 Other Current Liabilities
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Creditors for Expenses 59.04                              44.48                             
2 Duties & Taxes 0.42                                105.07                          
3 Others (PF & ESIC) 1.69                                1.70                               
4 Advance From Customers 249.55                            140.04                          

Total 310.71                            291.28                          

Note: 8 Short Term Provisions
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Provision for Income Tax

Opening Balance 149.42                            75.25                             
Add: Provision for Current Year 196.69                            149.42                          

346.11                            224.67                          
Less: Previous year's Provision w/o 149.42                            75.25                             

196.69                            149.42                          
2 Provision for Expenses 10.69                              16.88                             
3 Auditors' Remuneration Payable 2.07                                3.60                               

Closing Balance 209.45                            169.90                          

Particulars
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
(Amount in Lakhs)



NOTE- 09

CONSOLIDATED PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AS PER COMPANIES ACT (Amount in Lakhs)

As at 01.04.2023
Additions

Deductions/Ad
justments As at 31-03-2024  As at 01.04.2023 

For the year
Deductions/Ad

justments As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2024 As at 31.03.2023

TANGIBLE ASSETS
OWN ASSETS:
1) Office Equipment
Air Conditioner 1.81 0.55 0.00 2.35 1.08 0.22 0.00 1.30 1.05 0.73
Telephone Instruments 1.17 0.00 0.00 1.17 1.03 0.03 0.00 1.05 0.12 0.15
Computer 5.43 0.58 0.00 6.01 4.74 0.39 0.00 5.14 0.88 0.69
Laptop 1.47 0.00 0.00 1.47 0.58 0.57 0.00 1.15 0.32 0.89
Monitor LED 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00
Water Tank 1000 LTR 0.12 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.10 0.02 0.00 0.11 0.01 0.03
FAN 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.17 0.09 0.00 0.25 0.05 0.13
2) Motor Vehicle 
Motor Cycle 1.90 0.00 0.00 1.90 1.81 0.00 0.00 1.81 0.09 0.09
TVS Jupiter-BSVI Titanium Grey 0.64 0.00 0.00 0.64 0.35 0.07 0.00 0.43 0.21 0.29
Car 69.68 0.00 0.00 69.68 37.73 9.86 0.00 47.60 22.09 31.95
Pickup 6.46 0.00 0.00 6.46 6.14 0.00 0.00 6.14 0.32 0.32
Passenger Bus 17.26 0.00 17.26 0.00 8.95 0.00 8.95 0.00 0.00 8.32
Truck 74.34 0.00 0.00 74.34 26.70 14.97 0.00 41.67 32.67 47.64
Mahindra XUV 7OO 23.51 0.00 0 23.51 6.11 5.46 0 11.58 11.93 17.39
3) Mobile 3.91 0.57 0.00 4.48 2.03 0.35 0.00 2.37 2.11 1.89

4) Plant & Machinery 1258.36 116.31 0.00 1374.67 744.69 108.08 0.00 852.77 521.90 513.67

5) Furniture & fixture 32.26 1.12 0.00 33.38 22.05 2.71 0.00 24.76 8.62 10.22

6) Building 768.43 0.00 0.00 768.43 368.52 37.96 0.00 406.48 361.95 399.92

7) Land 196.36 0.00 0.00 196.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 196.36 196.36

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
1) Trademark 2.31 0.00 0.00 2.31 2.12 0.03 0.00 2.14 0.16 0.19

TOTAL 2465.82 119.12 17.26 2567.68 1234.98 180.81 8.95 1406.83 1160.84 1230.85
Previous year

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
PARTICULARS



Note: 10 Non-Current Investments 
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Investment in Quoted Equity Shares (at Cost)

Latteys Industries Limited 19.62                              -                                 
(44000 Fully paidup Equity Shares)
Total 19.62                              -                                 

Note: 11 Other Non-Current Assets
S.No. Particulars As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Security Deposits 52.36                              59.20                             
2 Preliminary Expenses (to the extent not written off) 5.64                                -                                 

Total 58.00                              59.20                             

Note: 12 INVENTORIES (Taken as valued and certified by the Management)
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
INVENTORIES (Cost or NRV Whichever is Lower)

1 Raw Material 1,015.18                        588.68                          
2 Stock In Trade 1,044.34                        331.59                          
3 Finished Goods

Finished Goods 787.59                            276.57                          
Work in process 148.42                            -                                 

Total 2,995.53                        1,196.83                       

Note: 13 Trade Receivables
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Secured, Considered Good -                                  -                                 
2 Unsecured, Considered Good 1,920.24                        2,449.47                       
3 Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk -                                  -                                 
4 Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                                  -                                 

Total 1,920.24                        2,449.47                       

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars

(Amount in Lakhs)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars
(Amount in Lakhs)

1,920.24                        2,449.47                       

Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as at 31st March, 2024  (Outstanding from the due date of Payament)

Note: 14 Cash and Cash Equivalents
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Balances with Banks

In Current Account 302.63                            148.43                          
In Fixed Deposit Accounts(Under lien) 17.14                              141.35                          

319.77                            289.79                          
2 Cash in hand (As certified by management) 16.38                              8.59                               

Total 336.15                            298.38                          

Note: 15 Short Term Loans and Advances
S.No. As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Loans & Advances to others

(Advance Recoverable in cash/in kind or for value
to be recovered, considered good)
Advance Income Tax (Asstt. Year 2011-12) 4.38                                4.38                               
Income Tax demand appealed (Asstt. Year 2012-13) 45.80                              45.80                             
Advance Income Tax 160.00                            95.58                             
TDS Receivable 20.19                              13.51                             
Duties & Taxes 10.99                              -                                 
Advance to Staff 12.37                              8.61                               
Advance to Creditors 58.41                              108.08                          
Advance to Creditors for Capital Goods 200.00                            265.50                          
Prepaid Expenses 9.84                                6.51                               
Sundry Advances 8.52                                2.52                               
Total 530.51                            550.47                          

Particulars                                                      <6months       6months-1 year       1-2 year        2-3year        >3 year            Total  

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Particulars

- Undisputed Receivables-Considered good               1670.83                   5.00                       -                     -                     -               1675.83

- Undisputed Receivables-Considered doubtful                -                         -                            -                    -                     -                   -

- Disputed Receivables-Considered good                        -                         -                            -                    -                244.41             244.41

- Disputed Receivables-Considered doubtful                   -                         -                            -                    -                     -                   -

(Amount in Lakhs)



Contact No. : 01572-245009

(Amount in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Note 

No.

I Income from Operations 16 12,861.19                       11,764.44                           
II Other Income 17 41.62                              54.47                                  
III Total Income (I+II) 12,902.81                       11,818.91                           

IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 18 9,120.35                         8,129.91                             
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 2,192.83                         1,926.34                             
Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade 19 (647.62)                           107.79                                
Employee Benefit Expenses 20 252.57                            214.44                                
Finance Costs 21 279.49                            226.32                                
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 22 182.21                            189.54                                
Other Expenses (Manufacturing, Administrative, Selling & 
Distribution Expenses) 23 860.40                            521.67                                
Total Expenses (IV) 12,240.24                       11,316.01                           

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 662.57                            502.90                                
(III-IV)

VI Exceptional Items -                                  -                                       
VII Prior Period Expenses 0.18                                0.26                                     
VIII Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V-VI-VII) 662.38                            502.65                                
VIX Extraordinary Items -                                  -                                       
X Profit before Tax (VIII-VIX) 662.38                            502.65                                
XI Tax Expenses

(1) Current Tax 24 196.69                            149.42                                
(2) Tax Expense relating to Prior Years -                                  0.75                                     
(3) Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (8.85)                               (9.18)                                   

XII Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (X-XI) 474.54                            361.65                                
XIII Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations -                                  -                                       
XIV Tax Expense of discontinuing operations -                                  -                                       
XV Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations (XIII-XIV) -                                  -                                       
XVI Profit/(Loss) for the year (XII+XV) 474.54                            361.65                                
XVII Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic (Previous year re-stated) 5.02                                3.83                                     
(2) Diluted (Previous year re-stated) 5.02                                3.83                                     
Significant Accounting Policies, Notes to Accounts, 
Other General Notes and Disclosures

Notes 1 to 25  forming integral part of Accounts. As per our report of even date
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED For M/s Happy Kedawat and Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 030525C

                   sd/-                                               sd/-
(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)                (RAJENDRA KALER)
Managing Director                              Whole Time Director                                  sd/-
DIN:- 01050715                                        DIN:-08032024 (Happy Kedawat)

Proprietor

Membership No. 401746
(K.L. SHARMA)                                   (MONIKA BOHARA)
Chief Finance Officer                        Company Secretary
                                                              Mem. No. : 60048
Place : Sikar
Date : 20-05-2024
UDIN : 24401746BKGPWN1063

                       sd/-                                                          sd/-

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Email ID : kepls@live.com

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN
CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

For the year ended 
31.03.2024  

For the year ended 
31.03.2023         



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

Note: 16 Income from Operations (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Sale of Products 12,859.68                  11,761.42                  
2 Sale of Services -                              -                             
3 Other Operating Income 1.51                            3.03                           

Total 12,861.19                  11,764.44                  

Note: 17 Other Income (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Interest Received 20.40                          14.93                         
2 Exchange Rate Difference 0.74-                            15.48                         
3 Profit & Loss on sale of Fixed Assets -                              -                             
4 Govt. Subsidy 15.00                          23.88                         
5 Profit / Loss on Sales of Shares -                              0.17                           
6 Other Income 6.96                            -                             

Total 41.62                          54.47                         

Note: 18 Cost of Material Consumed (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Opening Stock 588.68                       773.67                       
2 Add: Purchases 9,695.27                    7,944.92                    

10,283.94                  8,718.58                    
3 Less: Closing Stock 1,163.60                    588.68                       

Balance 9,120.35                    8,129.91                    

Note: 19 Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
(Amount in Lakhs)

For the For the 
year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Opening Stock 1,184.32                    715.95                       
2 Less: Closing Stock 1,831.94                    608.16                       

Balance (647.62)                      107.79                       

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714

Consolidated Notes 1 to 25 forming intergral part of Accounts as at 31st March, 2024



Note: 20 Employee Benefit Expenses (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Salaries & Wages 198.03                       173.42                       
2 Provident Fund Contribution 9.51                            8.92                           
3 ESIC Contribution 2.26                            2.19                           
4 Remuneration to Directors 38.64                          27.60                         
5 Staff Welfare Expenses 4.12                            2.32                           

Total 252.57                       214.44                       

Note: 21 Finance Costs (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Interest to Bank 257.54                       204.94                       
2 Interest & Late Fee on Taxes 10.78                          11.56                         
3 Bank Charges 11.18                          9.82                           

Total 279.49                       226.32                       

Note: 22 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Depreciation and Amortization 182.21                       189.54                       
Total 182.21                       189.54                       

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars



Note: 23 Other Expenses (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(A) Direct Expenses
1 Electricity & Water Expenses 218.48                       146.90                       
2 Labour Charges 0.39                            1.35                           
3 Building Maintenance Expenses 8.46                            3.43                           
4 Fuel Expenses 4.55                            8.39                           
5 Job Charges 34.20                          14.25                         
6 Testing & Crafting Expenses 23.05                          0.78                           
7 Bus Fabrication Works 253.74                       108.95                       
8 Carriage & Cartrage 94.83                          95.32                         

Total (A) 637.70                       379.37                       

(B) Administrative Expenses
1 News Papers & Periodicals 0.09                            0.08                           
2 Office & General Expenses 28.36                          15.83                         
3 Postage, Printing & Stationery 0.48                            0.47                           
4 Legal & Professional Fees 21.66                          9.67                           
5 Rent 22.20                          11.40                         
6 Repairing & Maintenance Charges 42.11                          22.73                         
7 Insurance Charges 5.12                            2.71                           
8 Auditor's Remuneration 4.11                            3.60                           
9 Membership & Subscription Charges 0.12                            0.07                           

10 Telephone Expenses 2.73                            0.62                           
11 Software AMC Charges 3.03                            1.01                           
12 Sundry Balances W/Off 0.03                            2.69                           
13 Travelling Expenses 15.44                          6.36                           
14 Donations 0.82                            0.11                           
15 RIICO Land development charges -                              4.66                           
16 Vat/CST Demand -                              22.52                         
17 Loss by Cash Theft -                              2.50                           
19 Penalty/Late Fees Charges 5.24                            -                             
20 CSR Activity Expenses 2.73                            -                             
21 Security Charges 4.31                            -                             

Total (B) 158.56                       107.04                       

(C) Selling & Distrubution Expenses
1 Cash Discount / Special Discount 1.53                            1.93                           
2 Advertisement 5.04                            4.01                           
3 Vehicle Runing & Maintenance Expenses 29.46                          27.21                         
4 Packing, Forwarding & Weighing Charges 1.48                            1.47                           
5 Sales Promotion Expenses 15.64                          0.63                           
6 Copmmission & Brokerage 11.00                          

Total (C) 64.14                          35.26                         

Total (A+B+C) 860.40                       521.67                       

Note: 24 Current Tax (Amount in Lakhs)
For the For the 

year ended year ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

1 Provision For Taxation 196.69                       149.42                       
Total 196.69                       149.42                       

S.No. Particulars

S.No. Particulars



Email ID : kepls@live.com
Contact No. : 01572-245009

(Amount in Lakhs)

 Details  Amount  Details  Amount 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax as per Profit and Loss Statement                    662.38                       502.65 

Adjusted For:

Depreciation & Amortisation                    180.80                       189.54 

Interest Paid                    279.49                       226.32 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets                            -                                 -   

Operating profits before Working Capital Changes                 1,122.68                          918.50 

Adjustment For:

Inventories                (1,798.70)                       292.79 

Trade Receivables                    529.23                      (693.42)

Short term loan & advances                      19.96                      (278.73)

Long term loan & advances                            -                                 -   

Other Non-Current Assets                        1.20                        (12.44)

Other current assets                            -                                 -   

Trade Payables                   (446.58)                       266.82 

Short term Borrowings                    960.18                         30.85 

Other Liabilities                      58.98                  (675.72)                       154.64                        (239.50)

Cash generated from Operations                    446.96                          679.00 

Income Tax                    196.69                          150.17 
Interest on Income Tax                           -                                   -   

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (A)                    250.27                          528.83 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Less : Purchase of Fixed Assets                    119.12                       214.68 

Transfer of Fixed Assets                        8.32                               -   

Purchase of Investments                      19.62                               -   

Less : Increase in Other Non- Current Assets                            -                                 -   
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B)                  (130.42)                        (214.68)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Borrowings & other Long- term Liabilities                   (172.76)                      (177.58)

Less : Interest Paid                   (279.49)                      (226.32)

Increase in Share Capital                      85.00                               -   

Increase in Other Reserves & Surplus                    285.18                               -   

Less : Decrease in Share Application Money                            -                                 -   

Subsidy Received                            -                                 -   
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (C)                    (82.07)                        (403.90)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)                      37.78                          (89.75)

Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the Period                    298.38                          388.13 
Cash & Cash equivalents at the close of the Period                    336.15                          298.38 

Note:

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared adopting the Indirect method as prescribed under para 18 of Accounting Standard-3

(AS-3) on " Cash Flow Statement."

Notes 1 to 25  forming integral part of Accounts. As per our report of even date
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED For M/s Happy Kedawat and Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 030525C

                               sd/-                                      sd/-
(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)                (RAJENDRA KALER)
Managing Director                              Whole Time Director                              sd/-
DIN:- 01050715                                        DIN:-08032024 (Happy Kedawat)

Proprietor
Membership No. 401746

                 sd/-                                                    sd/-
(K.L. SHARMA)                                      (MONIKA BOHARA)
Chief Finance Officer                           Company Secretary
                                                                  Mem. No. : 60048
Place : Sikar
Date : 20-05-2024
UDIN : 24401746BKGPWN1063

 For the year ended 31.03.2023   For the year ended 31.03.2024    

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

PARTICULARS

REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: F-69A, RIICO INDUSTRIAL AREA, SIKAR-332001 RAJASTHAN

CIN:- L31300RJ2002PLC017714



REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED, SIKAR 

“Notes forming part of consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024” 

25 :     SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Accounting Convention / Basis of Accounts Preparation 

 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost conventions in 

according with the generally accepted accounting principles and in compliance with the Accounting 

Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as the Companies (Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2006, and in accordance with the other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 All assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The 

consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are prepared as per Schedule III 

to the Companies Act 2013. 

 The company generally follows the mercantile system of accounting & recognizes income and 

expenditure on an accrual basis except those with significant uncertainties  

 Consolidated Financial Statements are based on historic cost. Those cost are not adjusted to 

reflects the impact of the changing the value in the purchase power of money. 

 

B. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, the reported amounts of 

assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities as on the date of the consolidated 

financial statements. 

 

C. Property, Plants & Equipments 

 Property, Plants & Equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

amortization. 

 Cost for the purpose of valuing Property, Plants & Equipments & capital work in progress 

comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for 

its intended use. 

 Pre-operative Expenditure and cost relating to borrowed funds attributable to the construction 

or acquisition up to the date asset is ready for use is included under Capital Work-in-Progress and the 

same is allocated to the respective fixed assets on its completion for satisfactory commercial 

commencement.  

 

 

 



D. Depreciation and Amortization 

 

  Depreciation on tangible asset is provided on the Written down Value method over the useful 

life of the asset prescribed as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets 

purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged.  

 
E. Investment 

 Investments that are intended to be held for more than a year from the date of acquisition are 

classified as long-term investments and are stated at its cost of acquisition. Diminution, if any, other 

than temporary, in the value of such investments is provided. 

 Investments other than long-term investments, being current investments, are valued at the 

lower of cost and fair value, determined on an individual basis, including held by the Subsidiaries for 

long-term purposes is provided. Diminution in the value of other investments is provided. 

 

F. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  

- Sale of Goods :-  

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods are transferred to the customer and is stated net of sales tax and sales returns.  Export sales 

are stated at FOB value.  

- Service, Maintenance Charges & installation :- 

Revenue from these activities is booked, based on agreements/arrangements with concerned parties.  

-Interest :- 

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

rate applicable. 

-Insurance Claims :-  

Insurance claims are accounted for when settled/received. Brokerage & Charges are recognized on 

completed settlement basis and banks interest on accrual basis.  

 

G. Taxes on Income 

Provision for Current Tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the 

provision of The Income Tax Act 1961. Deferred Tax resulting from "timing difference"& "rate 

difference" between book Profit and taxable profit is accounted for using the tax rate and laws that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is 

recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the assets will 

be realized in future. 



 

H. Valuation of Stock 

Stock is valued at lower of cost or realizable value consistent with AS-2 issued by ICAI. 

I. Foreign Currency Transaction 

 All monetary assets & liability in foreign currencies are translated in Indian rupee at exchange 

rates prevailing at the balance sheet date as notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of 

India (FEDAI). 

 All non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency 

are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 Items of income and expenditure relating to foreign exchange transaction are recorded at 

exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting at rates 

different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous 

financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.  

J. Accounting of CENVAT/VAT benefits 

 CENVAT/VAT credit availed under the relevant provisions in respect of Raw materials, Packing 

materials, capital goods, etc. is reduced from the relevant cost of purchase 

K. Retirement Benefits 

 Defined contribution plan: The Company’s superannuation scheme and state governed 

provident fund scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the 

schemes is recognized during the period in which the employees renders the related service. 

 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity: In accordance with applicable Indian Laws, the Company 

provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“Gratuity Plan”) covering all employees. The 

Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of 

employment, an amount based on the respective employees last drawn salary and the years of 

employment with the Company. Liability with regard to Gratuity Plan is accrued based on actuarial 

valuation at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent Actuary. Actuarial gain or loss is 

recognized immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss as Income or Expense. 

 Compensated Absences: As per policy of the Company, it allows for the encashment of 

absence or absence with pay to its employees. The employees are entitled to accumulate such 

absences subject to certain limits, for the future encashment or absence. The Company records an 

obligation for Compensated absences in the year in which the employees renders the services that 

increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absences as 

the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 

accumulated at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an independent Actuarial valuation. 



L. Borrowing Costs 

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets are 

capitalized, net of income / income earned on temporary investments from such borrowings. Other 

borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as expense in the year in which the 

same are incurred. 

 Redemption Premium payable on borrowings is included as part of borrowing costs on a 

periodic cost basis. 

M. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities And Contingent Assets 

 Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial 

degree of estimation, if the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, a probable 

outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be 

reliably estimated. 

 Reimbursement expected in respect of the expenditure required to settle a provision is 

recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received. 

 Contingent liability is stated in the case of a present obligation arising from a past event, when 

it is not Probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, a possible 

obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 

 Contingent assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed. 

 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 

date. 

N. Cash Flow Statement 

The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting 

Standard - 3 issued under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006. 

For and on behalf of the Board                    As per our audit report of even date   

For Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Limited                   For Happy Kedawat and Company 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 030525C 

 

                          sd/-                                  sd/-                                 sd/- 

Sharwan Kumar Kaler                Rajendra Kaler                        CA Happy Kedawat 

Managing Director  Whole Time Director                          Proprietor 

DIN 01050715       DIN 08032024        M. No. 401746 

 
                                                       sd/-                                           sd/-  
Date:  20-05-2024            K L Sharma                         Monika Bohara 

Place: Sikar   Chief Finance Officer            Company Secretary 

UDIN:-                               M No. 60048 



 
 
  

OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 
 

   
I 

 
Additional information pursuant to provision Part II of Schedule III of the Companies 
Act 2013. 

 i) Expenditure incurred on employees who are in receipt of remuneration in the aggregate 
at the rate of not less than Rs 6000000 P.A. or Rs 500000/- P.M. if employed part of the 
year Rs Nil (Previous Year Rs Nil) 
                                                                                                                             (Amount in Lakhs) 

  
 

 
 ii) Director's Remuneration :- 

Particulars  2023-2024   2022-2023 
Salary   38.64  27.60 
Commission  Nil  Nil 
     

II 

 

As required under the accounting standard of Related Party Disclosure (AS 18) issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, The disclosure of  Related Party name & 
their  transactions are as under:- 
                               Enclosed “Annexure A1& A2”   
 

 
III  Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 
 i) Value of Imported Components calculated on C.I.F. 

basis    47.31       342.63  
     
 ii) Expenditure in Foreign Currency :-   
       Nil        Nil 
     
 iii) Earning in Foreign Currency Nil        Nil 
     
 iv) Value of exports on F.O.B basis Nil        Nil  
     
 v) Remittance in foreign currencies on account of 

dividend to non-resident Share Holders Nil         Nil 
     
 vi) Capital Commitment Outstanding Nil        Nil 
   
IV  In the absence of confirmation from the parties and pending reconciliation, the debit and 

credit balances with regard to recoverable and payables have been taken as reflected in 
the books of accounts of company at the period-end. In the opinion of the Directors, 
Loans & Advances and Current Assets, if realized in the ordinary course of business, 
have the value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 
 

 

 
 

V  As required under the accounting standard of statement of employees (AS 15) issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company has not provided liability 
towards gratuity, since, as informed to me by the management, payment of gratuity is 
not applicable to the Company. Encashment of leave accumulated while in service is at 
the option of the employee and accounted for, as and when claimed, and hence not 
provided for.  

  
  
  
 

 
 
VI 

  
As required under the accounting standard of Provisions, Contingent Liability & 
Contingent Asset (AS 29) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The 
detail as per below. 
 



 
 

VII  As required under the accounting standard of Taxes on Income (AS 22) issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company has provided for Deferred Tax 
Liability/Assets for timing difference : 

  

Particulars 

2023-2024 2022-2023 
 

 
Creation\ 
(Reversal) 

Creation\ 
(Reversal) 

 

 
(i) On Account of Timing /difference in 
Depreciation.   

DTA : 8.85 9.18 

DTL : Nil Nil 
 

 
(ii) on Account of Timing Difference in 
Disallowance U/s 43B of the Income Tax Act. 

DTA : Nil Nil 
DTL : Nil Nil 

 

 
(iii) On Account of Timing Difference of 
Amortization of Expenses  

DTA : Nil Nil 

DTL : Nil Nil 
  Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) Additional  (1.54) (10.39) 
     
VIII  Wherever original vouchers are not available, management vouchers duly certified have 

been accepted by me and in the absence of the same, book entries as certified by the 
management, have been accepted by us. 

  
  
   
IX 
 
 
 
  

In the opinion of the management, current asset, loans and advances are expected to 
realize at least  the amount  at which they are stated, if realized in the ordinary course of 
business and provision for all known liabilities have been adequately made in the 
accounts. 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
XI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Advance to others includes advances to concerns in which directors are interest: 

Name  Current year closing 
balance  (Rs.in Lakhs) 

Previous year closing 
balance  (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 - - 

 
Calculation of Ratios: 
Particulars                                                        As at 31st 

March, 2024 
As at 31st 
March, 2023 

(a) Current Ratio                 1.55 1.42 
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio                1.24 1.52 
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio                 2.59 2.40 
(d) Return on Equity Ratio                0.15 0.16 
(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio                   5.39 7.86 
(f) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio                   5.91 5.62 
(g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio                  16.07 24.82 
(h) Net capital Turnover Ratio                   12.57 17.67 
(i) Net Profit Ratio                    3.68 3.06 
(j) Return on Capital Employed                    0.28 0.27 
(k) Return on Investment 0.00                0.00 



 
 

XII 

 

The Company has not received any Registration Certificate From Any Vendor as to 
whether it is Registered under the Sec 22 of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. 
 

XIII 

 

The Company is a small and medium sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General 
Instructions in respect of Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, the Company has complied with the Accounting Standards as applicable to 
a SMC. 
 

XIV 

 

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments:- 
  
Particulars  As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023 
Contingent Liabilities:-  
Claim not acknowledge as debt by the Company:- 
Bill Discounted & Outstanding:- 
Guarantee and Letter of Credit issued by the banker 
of the Company (including guarantee given by the 
company):- 
 
Capital Commitments:-  
Estimated amount of the contract to be executed on 
Capital Account:- 
 

 
 
 
 

5.00 Lakhs 
 
 
 

Nil 

 
 
 
 

431.96 Lakhs 
 
 
 

Nil 

 

XV 

 

Benami Property: - No any proceeding have been initiated or pending against the 
company for the holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 
 

XVI 

 

Wilful Defaulter:- The Company is not categorized as Wilful Defaulter by the any Bank 
or Financial Institution or Other Lenders. 
 

XVII 

 

Relationship with Struck off Companies:- The Company does not have any transactions 
with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956. 
 

XVIII 

 

The Company was earlier known as Kaler Electricals Private Limited, however its name 
was changed to Rex Pipes & Cables Industries Private Limited, vide fresh certificate of 
incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan, Jaipur dated 19th 
January, 2018. The Company was thereafter converted into a Public Limited Company 
vide fresh certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan, 
Jaipur dated 1st February, 2018 and since then is named as Rex Pipes & Cables 
Industries Limited. 
 

XIX 
 

The Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary. 
 

XX 

 

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic: In assessing the recoverability if loans, receivables & 
other advances, stocks, investments and other tangible assets, the company has 
considered internal & external sources of information, including industry reports upto 
the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements and based on the current 
indicators of future economic conditions, the company expects to recover the carrying 
amounts of these assets. The eventual outcome of the impact of the pandemic may 
though be different from what has been estimated as on date of approval of the accounts. 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
XXI 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
The company has prepared these consolidated financial statements as per format 
prescribed by Schedule-III to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the schedule') issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs.  Previous year figures have been recast\restated to conform to the 
classification required by Schedule III & make then comparable with current Period. 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

As per our report of  
even date attached for 

 
FOR REX PIPES AND CABLES INDUSTRIES LIMITED FOR HAPPY KEDAWAT AND COMPANY 
 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
  
 

                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER)         (RAJENDRA KALER) 

   Managing Director                            Whole Time Director              

   DIN: 01050715                                          DIN: 08032024 
  

 
                    Sd/-                                                           Sd/- 
(K L SHARMA)                             (MONIKA BOHARA) 
Chief Finance Officer                        Company Secretary 
                                                               Mem. No. 60048 
 Place: Sikar  

  Dated: 20-05-2024 
UDIN:- 24401746BKGPWN1063 

 
                             Sd/- 

    (CA. HAPPY   KEDWAT) 

PROPRIETOR 

 
M.No.401746 

 
FRN-030525C 

 
 

  
  

 



S. No. Parties

List of Key Managerial Person

Key Management Personnel 
1 Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler Managing Director
2 Mr. Rajendra Kaler Whole Time Director
3 Smt. Sohani Devi Whole Time Director
4 Mr. K L Sharma Chief Financial Officer
5 Monika Bohara Company Secretary

Relatives of KMPS
1 Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler
2 Sunita Kumari

Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel exercises 
significant influence 

1 M/s J K Polymers
2 M/s Supreme Industries
3 M/s DLB Govindam Affordable Housing
4 M/s Dream Home Builders
5 M/s Rex Pumps Private Limited
6 M/s Desi Shopping Market Private Limited
7 M/s Swastik Infracity Private Limited
8 M/s Pagrik Ethiopia PLC

Formating Part of Notes on Accounts Annexure -"A1"

Name of Related Parties and Relationships



(Rs. in Lakhs) 
 2023-24 2022-23

 Transaction Value  Transaction Value 

Managerial Remuneration 20.16                         14.40                       
Rent 1.44                           1.44                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 2.43                           0.76                         
Loan Taken 190.02                       512.00                     
Loan Repaid 190.02                       512.00                     

Managerial Remuneration 13.44                         9.60                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 4.50                           6.32                         
Loan Taken 38.17                         53.38                       
Loan Repaid 38.17                         53.38                       

Managerial Remuneration 5.04                           3.60                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 6.68                           0.09                         
Loan Taken 88.35                         14.50                       
Loan Repaid 88.35                         14.50                       
Rent 7.32                           7.32                         

Mr. K L Sharma
Managerial Remuneration 5.66                           5.47                         
Reimbursement of Exp. 3.77                           -                           

Ms. Monika Bohara
Managerial Remuneration 2.59                           2.76                         
Loan Taken 33.10                         -                           
Loan Repaid 33.10                         -                           
Rent 2.64                           2.64                         

Sunita Kumari Salary 2.40                           2.40                         
Purchase 5.32                           1.90                         
Sales 4.23                           1.52                         
Loan Taken 2.20                           9.79                         
Loan Repaid 2.20                           9.79                         
Sales 1.02                           25.51                       
Loan Taken -                             1.11                         
Loan Repaid -                             1.11                         

M/s Dream Home Builders Sales 0.34                           0.05                         
M/s Rex Pumps Private Limited Sales -                             2.29                         

Purchase 3.44                           4.71                         
Loan Taken 2.29                           305.50                     
Loan Repaid 2.29                           305.50                     
Rent Income 0.47                           -                           

M/s Pagrik Ethiopia PLC Import of Goods -                             327.53                     
 M/s SwasƟk Infracity Private Limited (Subsidiary company) Investment in Shares 599.00                       -                           

M/s Desi Shopping Market Private Limited

M/s DLB Govindam Affordable Housing

Formatting Part of Notes on Accounts Annexure -"A2"

Name of Related Parties and Their Transaction 

Name of the Related Parties & Nature of Relationships Nature of Transaction

Mr. Jitendra Kumar Kaler

Mr. Rajendra Kaler

Mrs. Sohani Devi

Mr. Sharwan Kumar Kaler

M/s Supreme Industries
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
To, 
The Shareholders, 
Swastik Infracity Private Limited, 
Jaipur. 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 13th Annual Report and the Audited Accounts for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2024. 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW : 
 

Your company did not undertake any commercial operations during the year under review. Your Directors 
are looking forward for a suitable opportunity in the upcoming years. 

 
2. DIVIDEND  
 

Since no business is undertake by the company, your directors do not recommend declaring any dividend. 
 

3. CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND NATURE OF BUSINESS  
 
During the Financial Year 2023-24, the authorised share capital of the company was increased from Rs. 
2.00 Lakhs to Rs. 6.00 Crores by way of creation of 59,80,000 further equity shares of Rs.10/- by passing 
ordinary resolution in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on  15.07.2023. 
 
Further on 07.09.2023, the company has issued and allotted 59,90,000 number of equity shares of Rs. 
10/- each to M/s Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Limited on Right issue Basis, as a result making the 
company as a subsidiary company of M/s Rex Pipes and Cables Industries Limited. 

  
4. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 

The Company did not have anysubsidiaries, joint ventures or associate company during the year under 
review. Therefore there is no information available to be provided under Rule 8(5) of the Companies 
(Accounts), Rules, 2014. 
 

5. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 
None of the employees was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 

6. DIRECTORS  
 

Mr.Sharwan Kumar Kaler (DIN:-01050715) and Mr. Rajendra Kaler (DIN:- 08032024) were duly regularised 
as directors in the Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2023.  
 

7. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT   
 

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
us, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 
2013: 

 
I. In the preparation of Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024, the 

applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures. 

 



 
 

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED 
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Regd. Office:  T-5, Suvha Laxmi Tower, Central Spine, Vidhyadhar Nagar, Jaipur-302039 
E-mail id:-swastik.dev2014@gmail.com  Phone No.:- 9829054232 

 
II. The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial year and of the profit of the Company for the 
year under review. 

 
III. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
IV. The Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, on 

`going concern’ basis. 
 

V. Proper internal financial controls were followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 
VI. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  
 

8. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 
 

During the year, 6 meetings of the Board of directors were held. The details of meetings are as follows:- 
 

Date of Meeting Total Directors Directors attending the meeting 

15.05.2023 2 2 
07.07.2023 2 2 
17.08.2023 2 2 
06.09.2023 2 2 
07.09.2023 2 2 
04.11.2023 2 2 
02.03.2024 2 2 

 
9. AUDITORS 

 
The company’s Auditors M/s G.K. Mittal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, hold office of Auditors until 
the conclusion of 17th Annual General Meeting. The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ 
Report are self- explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments. 

 
10. WEBLINK FOR ANNUAL RETURN 
 

Since the company do not have any website, hence no weblink for annual return is being provided in 
accordance with provisions of section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
11. THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO 
 

There are no particulars to be disclosed regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo in the manner as prescribed In Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 [Chapter IX]. 
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12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS  

 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given as follows: 
 

Particulars Name of entity Amount (in Rs.) 
Investments  

NIL Loans 
Guarantees 
Securities 

 
13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2023-24 
which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.. 
 

14. MATERIAL EVENTS, CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN 31st MARCH, 2024 AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
 
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
between the end of financial year (March 31, 2024) and the date of this report. 
 

15. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT  POLICY OF 
COMPANY 

 
The main aim of risk management is to identify, monitor and take precautionary measures in respect of 
the events that may pose risks for the business. The Company manages, monitors and reports on the 
principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives 
 

16. DEPOSITS 
 
During the year under review, your Company did not accept or renewed any deposits within the meaning 
of provisions of Chapter V – Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.However, the company accepted unsecured loans 
from its directors and in accordance with the provisions of the rule 2(1)(c )(viii) of Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014, details of the same is as follows:-  
 

S. No. Name of Director Opening 
Balance 
(In Rs.) 

Amount accepted 
during the year 

(In Rs.) 

Amount repaid 
during the year 

(In Rs.) 

Closing 
Balance 
(In Rs.) 

1. Sharwan Kumar 
Kaler 

6000000/- - 39,00,000/- 21,00,000/- 

 
17. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 

IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY 
 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations during the financial year 2023-24. 

 
18. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal control to ensure that all assets are 
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and that transactions are 
authorised, recorded, and reported correctly.  
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PLACE : JAIPUR                                                                                          DIRECTOR                        DIRECTOR 

                                                                                                       DIN:- 08032024                                   DIN:-01050715 
 



Phone : 0141-4021472, 4021474-75 3rd Floor, “Shree Dham”

E-mail :gkmassociates@hotmail.com R-20, Yudhishter Marg

Website :gkmnassociates.com C-Scheme, Jaipur – 302 005

To 

The members of

Swastik Infracity Private Limited 

Jaipur 

1. Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1A. Opinion 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31.03.2024;

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date;

1B. Basis for Opinion 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

2. Key Audit Matters 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

company, as it is an unlisted company. 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional judgement, were of most

significance in our Audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

Reporting of Key Audit Matters as per SA 701 (Key Audit Matters) are not applicable to the

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2024, the Statement of Profit

G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Swastik Infracity Private Limited

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements

and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expl anations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit



3. Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

materially misstated. 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

4. Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

whether due to fraud or error.

do so. 

process.

5. Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Boards' report, but does not include the financial

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibi lity is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

If, based on the work we have perfomed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including

the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

company‘s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a



override of internal control. 

controls. 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

statements. 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

Materiality is the magnitude of mis-statements in the financial statements that, individually or

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to

events or conditions that may cast signficant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstance. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies

Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has



6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

extent available. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

       our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

      Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

      by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

       Rules, 2014;

      31.03.2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

         required; and

         the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

              position; 

              for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

              Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31.03.2024

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013 and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement, dealt with

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the

Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

        the same is not applicable to the company; 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

(f) This report does not include a separate report on the adequacy of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such

        controls, since in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that section

197 is not applicable on private company. Hence, reporting as per section 197(16) is not

       I.   The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

II.   The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts

  III.   There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor



              behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

              provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

              representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement; and

              applicable. 

              (edit log) facility being enabled throughout the year and its tampering is not applicable. 

FOR G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-005842C

DATE : MAY 17, 2024 (NEERAJ KUMAR MATHUR)

PLACE : JAIPUR PARTNER

M.No.- 075851

UDIN- 24075851BKCBBT1349

--sd---

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in

  IV.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

on reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

which included test checks, we report that the company has not used any accounting

software for maintaining its books of account. The company is maintaining its

books of accounts in manual form. Hence commenting on feature of recording audit trail

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

  V.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company

from any person(s) or any entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with

the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence our reporting with

regard to compliance of provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not

  VII.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,

whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")

  VI.  Based on the audit procedures which we consider reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

  VIII.  Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance



i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

x.

xi.

a) As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our

opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by

management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and

the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory. 

b) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, we observed that the Company has not

been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rupees Five Crore, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of

security of current assets, hence commenting on para number 3(ii)(b) of CARO is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability

partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the

Order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon. 

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

OF SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED  FOR THE FY 2023-24

Since the company did not own / possess any Property, Plant & Equipments and Intangible Assets during the

year, hence provisions of para 3(i) is not applicable to our reporting. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.

Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanations given to us, the company does not fall within the purview of

section 148(1) regarding maintenance of cost records in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as

income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the

year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u s, the company has not granted

any loan, made investment or provided guarantee / security which attracts provisions of section 185 & 186 of

the Act, hence reporting under para 3(iv) is not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender (banks, financial

institutions or government) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of

the company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues

including Income Tax, Goods & Services Tax, Provident Fund and other material statutory dues have generally

been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. According to the

information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory dues payable in respect of Income Tax,

Goods & Services Tax and other material statutory dues, were in arrears as at 31.03.2024 for a period more

than six months from the date they become payable;

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, there were no material dues of Income Tax and

other material statutory dues, outstanding as on 31.03.2024, which have not been deposited by the Company

on account of dispute;

a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares

or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not

applicable. However, during the year. the Company made additional allotment of shares through Right's Issue.

a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and

explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report

that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143

of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there were no whistle

blower complaints received by the company during the year.



xii.

xiii.

xiv.

xv.

xvi.

xvii.

xviii.

xix.

xx.

FOR G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-005842C

DATE : MAY 17, 2024 (NEERAJ KUMAR MATHUR)

PLACE : JAIPUR PARTNER

M.No.- 075851

UDIN- 24075851BKCBBT1349

--sd--

Based on information and explanations provided to us, in our opinion, th e company is not required to have an

internal audit system as per section 138 of the Companies Act, hence reporting under clause xiv.(a) & (b) is not

applicable to the company. 

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the order is not

applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u s, the transactions with related

parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, whereever applicable, and

the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the

applicable Accounting Standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u s, during the year the Company has

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its Directors and hence

provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable;

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-I of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of the examination of the

records, we are of the opinion that the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing

Finance Activities, hence clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does

not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash loss during the current year, however it incurred a cash loss of Rs. 15151/-

in the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the

Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and

expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to

the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of

the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u s, the provisions of Corporate

Social Responsibility of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a)

and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.



Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars Note 

No.

Figures as at the 

end of current 

reporting period 

31.03.2024

Figures as at the 

end of previous 

reporting period 

31.03.2023

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder's Funds

(a) Share Capital 1 60,000                  100                       

(b) Reserves & Surplus 2 80 (57)

(2) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long-Term Borrowings 3 2,100                    53,663                  

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) -                        -                        

(c) Other Long Term Liabilities -                        -                        

(d) Long-Term Provisions -                        -                        

(3) Current Liabilities

(a) Short-Term Borrowings -                        -                        

(b) Trade Payables 4

        - Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises -                        -                        

        - Outstanding Dues of Others 1,375                    -                        

(c) Other Current Liabilities 5 21                         4,521                    

(d) Short-Term Provisions 6 39                         9                           

Total Equity & Liabilities (I) 63,615                  58,236                  

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 

     (i)   Property, Plant & Equipments -                        -                        

     (ii)  Intangible assets -                        -                        

     (iii) Capital work-in-progress -                        -                        

     (iv) Intangible assets under development -                        -                        

-                        -                        

(b) Non-Current Investments -                        -                        

(c) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) -                        -                        

(d) Long-Term Loans & Advances -                        -                        

(e) Other Non-Current Assets 7 564                       -                        

(2) Current Assets

(a) Current Investments -                        -                        

(b) Inventories 8 62,378                  57,616                  

(c) Trade Receivables -                        -                        

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 37                         21                         

(e) Short-Term Loans & Advances 10 636                       600                       

(f)  Other Current Assets -                        -                        

Total Assets (II) 63,615                  58,236                  

Significant Accounting Policies & Other Notes to Accounts 16

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16 form integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of In terms of our report of even date

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED FOR G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-005842C

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER) (RAJENDRA KALER)

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN : 01050715 DIN : 08032024 (NEERAJ KUMAR MATHUR)

PARTNER

M.No.- 075851

DATE : MAY 17, 2024 UDIN- 24075851BKCBBT1349

PLACE : JAIPUR 

--sd--

--sd----sd--

As on 31.03.2024

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED 

T-5, Suvha Laxmi Tower, Central Spine, Vidhyadhar Nagar, Jaipur

CIN-U70101RJ2012PTC037859

BALANCE SHEET



Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars Note 

No.

Figures for the 

current reporting 

period ended on 

31.03.2024

Figures for the 

previous reporting 

period ended on 

31.03.2023

I Revenue from Operations 0 0

II Other Income 11 359 0

III Total Income (I +II) 359 0

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 0 0

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 4,762 0

Changes in inventories of FG, WIP and Stock-in-Trade 12 (4,762) 0

Employee Benefit Expenses 0 0

Financial Costs 13 1 0

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 14 141 0

Other Expenses 15 50 15

Total Expenses (IV) 192 15

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III - IV) 167 (15)

VI Exceptional Items 0 0

VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 167 (15)

VIII Extraordinary Items 0 0

IX Profit before tax (VII - VIII) 167 (15)

X Tax expense:

 (1) Current tax 30 0

 (2) Deferred tax 0 0

XI Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (IX-X) 136 (15)

XII Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations

XIII Tax expense of discounting operations

XIV Profit/(Loss) from Discontinuing operations (XII - XIII) 0 0

XV Profit/(Loss) for the period (XI + XIV) 136 (15)

XVI Earning per equity share:

       (1) Basic In Rs. 0.02 (1.52)

       (2) Diluted In Rs. 0.02 (1.52)

Significant Accounting Policies & Other Notes to Accounts 16

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16 form integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of In terms of our report of even date

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED FOR G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-005842C

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER) (RAJENDRA KALER)

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN : 01050715 DIN : 08032024 (NEERAJ KUMAR MATHUR)

PARTNER

M.No.- 075851

DATE : MAY 17, 2024 UDIN- 24075851BKCBBT1349

PLACE : JAIPUR 

--sd--

-sd-- --sd--

For the year ended on 31.03.2024

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED 
T-5, Suvha Laxmi Tower, Central Spine, Vidhyadhar Nagar, Jaipur

CIN-U70101RJ2012PTC037859

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS



Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars Figures for the 

current reporting 

period ended on 

31.03.2024

Figures for the 

previous reporting 

period ended on 

31.03.2023
(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities

1 Net Profit before Tax 167 (15)

2 Adjustments

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 141 0

Interest / Financial Expenses 1 0

Less:- Interest received 0 0

Less : Dividend Income 0 0

Less : Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0 0

Total of Adjustments 142 0

3 Cash from Operating Activities before changes in W. Capital (1+2) 309 (15)

4 Changes in Working Capital

 - Inventories (4,762) 0

 - Debtors 0 0

 - Loans & Advances / Other Current Assets (36) 0

 - Current Liabilities & Provisions (3,095) 515

Total (7,893) 515

5 Cash Generated from Operating Activities (3+4) (7,584) 500

6 Less:- Tax paid 30 0

Total (A) (5-6) Net Cash from Operating Activities (7,614) 500

(B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities

1 Fixed Assets Sold 0 0

2 Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0 0

3 Interest Received 0 0

4 Less:- Fixed Assets Purchased (incl. CWIP) 0 0

5 Less : Investments / Other Non Current Assets 705 0

Total (B) Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (705) 0

(C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities

1 Increase in Long term Borrowings (51,563) (500)

2 Increase in Short term Borrowings 0 0

3 Increase in Share Capital 59,900 0

4 Less:- Interest paid 1 0

4 Less:- Dividend paid 0 0

Total (C) Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities 8,336 (500)

(D) Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 17 (0)

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 01.04.2023 21 21

Total Cash Balance 37 21

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 31.03.2024 37 21

Significant Accounting Policies & Other Notes to Accounts

The accompanying notes from 1 to 16 form integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of In terms of our report of even date

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED FOR G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-005842C

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER) (RAJENDRA KALER)

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN : 01050715 DIN : 08032024 (NEERAJ KUMAR MATHUR)

PARTNER

M.No.- 075851

DATE : MAY 17, 2024 UDIN- 24075851BKCBBT1349

PLACE : JAIPUR 

--sd-- --sd--

--sd--

For the year ended on 31.03.2024

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED 
T-5, Suvha Laxmi Tower, Central Spine, Vidhyadhar Nagar, Jaipur

CIN-U70101RJ2012PTC037859

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 



Note : 1 Share Capital Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023

1.1 Authorized Share Capital

6000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 60,000 200

(Previous year 20000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

60,000 200

1.2 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital

6000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 60,000 100

(Previous year 10000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

6000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in cash

Total 60,000 100

1.3 Details of aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up  

pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash. 0 0

1.4 Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares :

The equity shares of the Company, having par value of Rs. 10/- per share, rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights 

and entitlement to Dividend. 

1.5 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at 31.03.2024 is set out below :

S.No. Name of Shareholders
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

1 Rex Pipes & Cables Industries Ltd. 59,90,000 99.83% 0 0.00%

2 Sharwan Kumar Kaler 5,000 0.08% 5,000 50.00%

3 Rajendra Kaler 5,000 0.08% 5,000 50.00%

60,00,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%

1.6 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

S.No. Particulars

No. of Shares  Amount in 

Thousand 

No. of Shares  Amount in 

Thousand 
Authorized Share Capital

1 Opening Balance 20,000 200 20,000 200

2 Add : Additions 59,80,000 59,800 0 0

3 Less : Deductions 0 0 0 0

4 Closing Balance (1+2-3) 60,00,000 60,000 20,000 200

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital 

1 Opening Balance 10,000 100 10,000 100

2 Add : Additions 59,90,000 59,900 0 0

3 Less : Deductions 0 0 0 0

4 Closing Balance (1+2-3) 60,00,000 60,000 10,000 100

1.7 Details of Shares held by Promoters :

S.No. Name of Shareholders
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

1 Rex Pipes & Cables Industries Ltd. 59,90,000 99.83% 0 0.00%

2 Sharwan Kumar Kaler 5,000 0.08% 5,000 50.00%

3 Rajendra Kaler 5,000 0.08% 5,000 50.00%

60,00,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%

As at   31.03.2024 As at   31.03.2023

As at   31.03.2024 As at   31.03.2023

As at   31.03.2024 As at   31.03.2023

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON/ FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2024



Note : 2 Reserves & Surplus Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023

1 Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

Balance brought forward from previous year (57) (41)

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period 136 (15)

Less: Impairment Loss 0 0

Total 80 (57)

Note : 3 Long-Term Borrowings Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023

1 Loans & Advances From Directors 2,100                   6,000                   

2 Loans & Advances From Erstwhile Directors & their relatives -                        47,663                 

Total 2,100 53,663

Note : 4 Trade Payables Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023
1 Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 

- Disputed Dues -                        -                        

- Undisputed Dues -                        -                        

2 Total outstanding dues of others 

- Disputed Dues 0 0

- Undisputed Dues 1,375 0

Total 1,375 0

Ageing of Trade Payables Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023
1 Total outstanding dues of others (Undisputed)

- Less than 1 year 1,375                   -                        

- 1 to 2 years -                        -                        

- 2 to 3 years -                        -                        

- More than 3 years -                        -                        

Gross Total 1,375 0

Depicted in Note : 4 Trade Payables 1,375 0

Depicted in 0 0

Note : 5 Other Current Liabilities Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023

1 Other Payables 21 21

2 Sundry Advances 0 4,500

Total 21 4,521



Note : 6 Short-Term Provisions Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023

1 Provision for Taxation                          30                            -   

2 Provision for Auditor's Remuneration                             9                             9 

Total 39 9

Note : 7 Other Non-Current Assets Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023
1 Preliminary Expenses (to the extent not written off)                        564                            -   

Total 564 0

Note : 8 Inventories Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023
1 Stock in Trade 62,378                 57,616                 

Total 62,378 57,616

Note : Inventories have been valued as under : 

Stock-In-Trade : At Cost

Note : 9 Cash and Cash Equivalents Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023

1 Cash Balance 1 1

2 Bank Balances

 - In Current Account / Sweep Account 37 20

Total 37 21

Note : 10 Short-Term Loans & Advances Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars As at   

31.03.2024

As at   

31.03.2023
Advance Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 

to be considered good

1 Other Advances 600                       600                       

2 TDS Receivable 36                         -                        

Total 636 600



Note : 11 Other Income Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars For the year 

ended 

31.03.2024

For the year 

ended 

31.03.2023
1 Interest Income on FDR 359 0

Total 359 0

Note : 12 Changes in inventories of FG, WIP and Stock-in-Trade Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars For the year 

ended 

31.03.2024

For the year 

ended 

31.03.2023
1 Opening Stock of WIP 57,616 57,616

2 Less : Closing Stock of WIP 62,378 57,616

Net -4,762 0

Note : 13 Financial Costs Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars For the year 

ended 

31.03.2024

For the year 

ended 

31.03.2023

1 Bank Charges 1 0

Total 1 0

Note : 14 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars For the year 

ended 

31.03.2024

For the year 

ended 

31.03.2023
1 Amortization Expenses 141 0

Total 141 0

Note : 15 Other Expenses Amount in Thousand Rupees

S.No. Particulars For the year 

ended 

31.03.2024

For the year 

ended 

31.03.2023

1 Auditor's Remuneration 15 9

2 Legal & Professional Fees 35 6

Total 50 15



NOTE 16 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

as follows:

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with applicable accounting principles in

India, the applicable Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified) and other accounting principles

generally accepted in India, to the extent applicable.

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted and as recommended by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

2 Inventories (AS-2):

Inventories have been uniformly valued as under:

Work In Progress have been valued at Cost. Cost of Inventories comprises all costs of purchases, cost of conversion and

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

3 Revenue Recognition (AS-9):

Incomes and expenditures are recognized on accrual basis. Sales are recognized net of trade discounts, rebates and taxes.

4 Property, Plant & Equipment (AS-10):

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost includes taxes and

duties, freight, installation and other direct or allocated expenses. Depreciation on assets is provided on Written Down

Value Method in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at the rates and in the manner specified in

Schedule II of the Act except intangible assets. Capital Work-In-Progress is disclosed separately below the Gross Block of 

5 Investments (AS-13): 

Long term investment is carried at cost less any permanent diminution in value. Current investment is carried at the lower

of cost or fair value.

6 Employees Benefits (AS – 15) : 

(a) Short term Employees Benefits- Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount

in profit and loss account of the year in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Post Employment Benefits- Employees’ benefits in the form of contribution towards Provident Fund, ESI are considered

as defined contribution plan and the contributions to recognized funds are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the

year when the contributions are due, as per the provisions of respective statutes.
(c) Other Long Term Employees Benefits- Leaves lying in credit of the employees are not paid as the Company follows

practice of granting leaves as and when demanded by the employees during the year, otherwise the same gets lapsed.

Hence, no provision for the same is required to be made. 

7 Borrowing Cost (AS-16): 

Borrowing costs which are attributable to acquisition/construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of cost of

such assets till the date of putting such assets to use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

8 Earnings per Share (AS-20):

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share are computed in accordance with Accounting Standard – 20 on ‘Earnings per Share’.

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted Earnings per Equity

Share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding

during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

Notes attached to and forming part of the Statement of Accounts as on and for the year ending on 31.03.2024 are



9 Taxes on Income (AS – 22):

Tax expenses are the aggregate of current tax and deferred tax charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss for

the period.

(a) Current Tax- The current charge for income tax is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to

the company.

(b) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)- In case the company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e.

MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit Entitlement) only if there

is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each

balance sheet date.

(c) Deferred Tax- Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and

taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are

recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty at the assets can be realized in future; however, where

there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual

certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

10 Intangible Assets (AS – 26) : 

The Company amortizes the Intangible Assets over their estimated useful lives on the Straight Line Basis, commencing from

the date the asset is available to the company for its use. Further, the company assesses at each balance sheet date, the

probability of future economic benefits using reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent best estimate of the

set of economic conditions that will exist over useful life of the asset and amortizes the amount of the Asset accordingly.

11 Impairment of Assets (AS – 28) : 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any

such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If such recoverable amount of assets or

recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which assets belong is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is

reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Profit and Loss

Account. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the

recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of

depreciated historical cost.

12 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities (AS – 29) :

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events that probably requires an

outflow of resources and reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent

liability is made when there is possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow

of resources. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

13 Preliminary Expenses: 

Preliminary expenses are to be amortized over a period of 5 years from the year of commencement of commercial

operations of the Company.



OTHER NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1

2 Contingent Liabilities:

3 Sundry Debtors, Creditors & Advances:

4 Advances :

5 Unsecured Loans:

6 Provisions :

7 MSME Dues :

8 Transactions in Foreign Currency : Nil (Current Year as well as Previous Year)

9 No Remuneration paid/payable to Whole Time Directors during the year. 

10 Remuneration paid/payable to Statutory Auditors

    (Amount in Rs.)

S.No. Particulars

1 Statutory Audit Fees

2 Tax Audit Fees

3 Fees in other Capacity

Total

11 Earnings Per Share (EPS) :

Based on the information & documents available with the company, no creditor is covered under Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006. As a result, no interest, provision / payment has been made by the company to such

creditors and no disclosures thereof was possible to be made in these accounts. 

The management has not identified any possibilities of material liabilities against the company which may arise in future,

which needs to be reported hereunder. 

2023-24 2022-23

5900 5900

The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General Instructions in respect of Accounting

Standards notified under the Companies Act. Accordingly, the company has complied with the Accounting Standards as

applicable to a Small and Medium Sized Company.

In the absence of confirmation from the parties and pending reconciliation, the Debit and Credit balances in regard to

recoverable and payables have been taken as reflected in the books. In the opinion of the Directors, Loans & Advances and

Current Assets, if realized in the ordinary course of business, have the value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

The Company has given advances for purchase of goods to certain suppliers and to others towards expenses etc., which are in

the general course of business and not in the nature of loans or advances attracting provisions of Section 185/186 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Unsecured loans include Rs. 21 lacs (incl. Provision for interest) received from related parties. These advances do not fall

within the meaning of the expression “Deposit” as defined in the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

In the opinion of the management, the provisions made in these annual accounts are adequate. 

0 0

14750 8850

29508850

In determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any extra-

ordinary/ exceptional item. The number of shares in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of

shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises weighted

averages shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of equity shares that

could have been issued on the conversion of all diluted potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are

adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of

outstanding shares). Statement showing the computation of EPS is as under:



Amount in Rs.

S.No. Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

A Net Profit after Tax (Rs. In Lacs) 136380 (15151)

B Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (no. of shares) 6000000 10000

C Basic earning per share (In Rs.) (A/B) 0.02 (1.52)

D Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (no. of shares) 6000000 10000

E Diluted earning per share (In Rs.) (A/D) 0.02 (1.52)

F Face Value of share (In Rs.) 10.00 10.00

      

12

13

Additional Disclosures (duly certified by the management) 

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

There are no title deeds of immovable property in the company, which are not held in the name of the company. Further,

there are no leasehold properties (Land & Building) held by the company. 

The company has not revalued it's Property, Plant & Equipment (incl. Right of use assets) or intangible assets, or both during

the year.

Disclosure of Analytical Ratios as per Revised Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable since there are no

operations in the company during the current / previous year as such. 

An amount of Rs. 21,00,000/- has been raised from a director as Unsecured Loan, is pending clearance in the bank account of

the company till the date of signing of these financial statements. 

Stock in Trade has increased during the year due to purchase of two residential flats, out of which payment of Rs. 15,00,000/-

against one of the flats is still pending for clearance in the company's bank accounts till the date of signing of these financial

statements. 

The company has not granted any loans or advances, in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying

any terms of period of repayment to promoters / related parties, as defined in clause 76 of section 2 of the Companies Act,

2013.

There were no such capital works in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its costs, compared to its original

plan.

There is no intangible assets under development during the year.

There is no scheme of any arrangement that has been approved by the competent authority which requires compliances

under section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or by any government

authority.

The company has not entered in any transaction with companies whose names have been struck off under section 248 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not raised any secured loans, hence commenting on the creation / modification / satisfaction of charges

with the Registrar of Companies, is not applicable.

The company does not have any subsidiary hence provision of Section 2(87) read with Rule 2 of Companies (Restriction on

number of layers) Rules, 2017, are not applicable.



26

27

28

29 Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever applicable. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of In terms of our report of even date

SWASTIK INFRACITY PRIVATE LIMITED FOR G.K. MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-005842C

(SHARWAN KUMAR KALER) (RAJENDRA KALER)

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN : 01050715 DIN : 08032024 (NEERAJ KUMAR MATHUR)

PARTNER

M.No.- 075851

DATE : MAY 17, 2024 UDIN- 24075851BKCBBT1349

PLACE : JAIPUR 

--sd-- --sd--

--sd--

The company has not made any advance or investment or given any loan to any entity or person, including foreign entities

(called intermediaries) with an understanding to directly or indirectly lend or invest in other entities or persons, identified in

any manner whatsoever, by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security, or the like

to on or behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.  

The company does not have any undisclosed income, viz. transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that have been

surrendered /disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessements under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

The company has not made any investment or has traded in any Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year. 
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